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BUSINESS

YousSolar Inc. was formed on May 11, 2010 in Delaware under the entity Fireball Solar
Technologies, LLC. On January 16th of 2013, the company converted from Fireball Solar
Technologies, LLC to Fireball Technologies, Inc. On April 22, 2013, Fireball Technologies, Inc.
amended the company name to YouSolar, Inc. ("YouSolar”). All intellectual property has been
assigned to and is owned by the company.

YouSolar sells the PowerBloc®, an independent solar+battery nano-grid that delivers clean and
resilient power for the home or business. The PowerBloc is not a backup system but a primary
power system to the home or business. Solar energy is the primary energy source, but
PowerBloc can seamlessly blend solar, utility, and generator power on its efficient direct current
architecture. YouSolar is installing PowerBloc systems at homes in Northern California
threatened by wildfires and a clinic in Key West, Florida, in the path of tropical storms.

Previous Offerings

Name: Class B Common Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $174,199.64
Number of Securities Sold: 1,170,098



Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company operations.
Date: August 12, 2020
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Name: Series A Preferred Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $288,500.00

Number of Securities Sold: 3,187,838

Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, market research,
installation of demonstration project, and customer acquisition.

Date: December 11, 2018

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Name: Series A Preferred Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $604,100.00

Number of Securities Sold: 6,675,133

Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company operations.
Date: October 10, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $78,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration project,
inventory, markeling.

Date: February 11, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $10,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration, project,
inventory, marketing.

Date: November 06, 2019

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Name: Series Seed 1-6

Type of securily sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $0.00

Number of Securities Sold: 19,866,714

Use of proceeds: This issuance was related to a conversion of convertible loans and resulted in
no funds to the company, therefore, there was no use of proceeds.

Date: December 11, 2018

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)



Type of security sold: Debt

Final amount sold: $85,567.00

Use of proceeds: For working capital and general corporate purposes.
Date: December 28, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 4(a)(2)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $88,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration, project,
inventory, marketing.

Date: March 01, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $1,000,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration, project,
inventory, marketing.

Date: July 07, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $2,000,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration, project,
inventory, marketing.

Date: January 06, 2021

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Name: Class B Common Stock

Type of security sold: Equity

Final amount sold: $1,080,647.57

Number of Securities Sold: 6,564,455

Use of proceeds: Research and development, product development, company operations.
Date: August 14, 2020

Offering exemption relied upon: Regulation CF

Type of security sold: SAFE

Final amount sold: $340,000.00

Use of proceeds: Product development, software development at demonstration, project,
inventory, marketing.

Date: December 31, 2022

Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)



REGULATORY INFORMATION

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding;

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Operating Results — 2022 Compared to 2021

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

YouSolar has been developing the PowerBloc®, a solar+battery system based on a patented
parallel direct current architecture, for nearly all of its operating history. This effort included the
development of power electronics, controls, firmware and software, a solar production forecast, a
user interface, enclosures, and a cloud-based data and product database. The great majority of
our budget has been spent on this broad and complex research and development.

The company started generating substantial revenue in 2022 from the installation of six
residential PowerBlocs.

The company's operating expenses decreased from $3,136,034.50 in 2021 to $1,467,753.99 in
2022.

Historical results and cash flows:

By the end of 2022, YouSolar had a commercial PowerBloc solar+battery system that was
proven in the field. The system is based on modules that fit cabinets and racks with a 19" width,
an industry standard. After stopping PowerBloc sales in mid-2021 to focus on installations, we
resumed sales in late 2022 and closed one residential sale worth $168,770. In the first quarter of
2023, we closed three additional sales worth $495,937 in total. We now have a commercial
product we can sell and install within a few weeks or months of entering into an equipment sales
and installation agreement with a customer. Therefore, we expect our financials to show an
increase in sales and thus to look different from our historical financials.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2022, the Company had cash of $85,345.00. [ The Company intends to raise
additional funds through an equity financing.]

Debt

Creditor: The company owes debts to the founders and a family member of the CEQO and
president and one of its directors.

Amount Owed: $152,737.32

Interest Rate: 10.0% per year

Maturity Dale: January 01, 2030

Creditor: The company owes debts to shareholders and employees.
Amount Owed: $92,375.00



Interest Rale: 10.0%
Maturity Date: January 01, 2030

Creditor: The company utilizes a revolving credit line from Headway Capital.
Amount Owed: $62,103.46

Interest Rate: 4.0% per month

Maturity Date: n/a

DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

Our directors and executive officers as of the dale hereof, are as follows:

Name: Arnold Leitner

Arnold Leitner's current primary role is with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

Position: Founder, CEO and President

Dates of Service: May, 2010 - Present

Responsibilities: Product design, management, and fundraising. This is Arnold’s full-time role.
Arnold has an annual salary of U.S. 275k. As the founder, Arnold holds founder's shares,
Common A. He was also issued options in 2018. He may receive additional stock option grants
in the future.

Position: Board Member

Dates of Service: January, 2013 - Present

Responsibilities: Member of the board of directors. Arnold is not compensated for his role as
board member.

Other business experience in the past three years:

Employer: Arnald Leitner & Partners LLC (ALNP)

Title: Managing Member

Dates of Service: May, 2005 - Present

Responsibilities: Identify and invest in business opportunities in the renewable energy and
environmental technology sector.

Name: Michael W. Allman
Michael W. Allman's current primary role is with H2scan. Michael W. Allman currently services 2
hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:
Position: Board Member

Dates of Service: June, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Member of the Board of Directors

Other business experience in the past three years:

Employer: H2scan
Title: Chairman



Dates of Service: January, 2017 - Present
Responsibilities: Executive management.

Name: Bob Rutter

Bob Rutter's current primary role is with EIQ Energy Inc. Bob Rutter currently services 20-40
hours hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

Position: Board of Director

Dates of Service: July, 2022 - Present

Responsibilities: Advising the board on technology.

Other business experience in the past three years:

Employer: EIQ Energy Inc

Title: Systems and Firmware Engineer

Dates of Service: January, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: designed and developing systems

Name: Rupert Mayer

Rupert Mayer's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:
Position: Chief Financial Officer and Head of Strategy
Dates of Service: December, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Financial planning and reporting

Other business experience in the past three years:

Employer: IPfolio Corporation

Title: Founder & Chief of Product

Dates of Service: April, 2019 - October, 2022

Responsibilities: Stepped down from the CEO role to focus on leading Product & Engineering
after selling the company that Rupert started in 2012 to a strategic partner.

Other business experience in the past three years:

Employer: Clarivate PLC

Title: Executive Product Evangelist

Dates of Service: November, 2020 - May, 2022

Responsibilities: Primary liaison to internal and external stakeholders of the Product team of
Clarivate's IP Group and primary strategic advisor to the SVP of Product

PRINCIPAL SECURITY HOLDERS

Set forth below is information regarding the beneficial ownership of our Common Stock, our only
outstanding class of capital stock, as of December 31, 2022, by (i) each person whom we know
owned, beneficially, more than 10% of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock, and (ii) all
of the current officers and directors as a group. We believe that, except as noted below, each
named beneficial owner has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares listed.
Unless otherwise indicated herein, beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the



rules of the Securities and Exchange Commission and includes voting or investment power with
respect to shares beneficially owned.

Title of class: Class A Common Stock

Stockholder Name: Arnold Leitner & Partners LLC (ALNP) - (ALNP is managed by Arnold
Leitner, CEQ and President, who owns 45% of ALNP. Arnold has the power and authority to
make all decisions for ALNP. Pradyna Leitner, Arnold's wife, owns 45% of ALNP. Lisa Eidt and
Christian Ruebesam, co-founders, each own 5% of ALNP).

Amount and nature of Beneficial ownership: 8,855,781

Percent of class: 70.01

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Name of Entity: Annemarie Lisa Eidt

Relationship to Company: Founder

Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: Lisa provides graphic and user interface design
for the company. She is paid cash for services.

Material Terms: Lisa charges the company USD 50/hour for design and research and USD
35/hour for meetings and communication. Lisa senior designer who during her career designed
the logo, font, and style quide for the logos of all offices of the German executive branch and its
agencies.

OUR SECURITIES

The company has authorized Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock, Series Seed
Preferred Stock (Series 1- 6), Series A Preferred Stock, SAFE Note - Series 0, SAFE Note -
Series 1, SAFE Notes - Series 2, and 2022 Bridge SAFE. As part of the Regulation
Crowdfunding raise, the Company will be offering up to 6,756,753 of Class B Common Stock.

Class A Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 67,000,000 with a total of 8,855,781 outstanding.
Voting Rights

The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes for each share held of
record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders.

Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Class A Common Stock.

Class B Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 65,000,000 with a total of 29.431,197 outstanding.

Voting Rights

The holders of Class B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of record on all
matters as may be provided for by law.

Material Rights

Voting Rights of Securities Sold in this Offering

Voting Proxy. Each Subscriber shall appoint the Chief Executive Officer of the Company (the
*CEQ"), or his or her successor, as the Subscriber’s true and lawful proxy and attorney, with the
power to act alone and with full power of substitution, to, consistent with this instrument and on
behalf of the Subscriber, (i) vote all Securities, (ii) give and receive notices and communications,



(iii) execute any instrument or document that the CEO determines is necessary or appropriate in
the exercise of its authority under this instrument, and (iv) take all actions necessary or
appropriate in the judgment of the CEO for the accomplishment of the foregoing. The proxy and
power granted by the Subscriber pursuant to this Section are coupled with an interest. Such
proxy and power will be irrevocable. The proxy and power, so long as the Subscriber is an
individual, will survive the death, incompetency and disability of the Subscriber and, so long as
the Subscriber is an entity, will survive the merger or reorganization of the Subscriber or any
other entity holding the Securities. However, the Proxy will terminate upon the closing of a firm-
commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the
Securities Act of 1933 covering the offer and sale of Common Stock or the effectiveness of a
registration statement under the Securties Exchange Act of 1934 covering the Common Stock.

Options

The total amount outstanding includes stock options issued to purchase 12,183,165 shares of
Class B Common Stock. having an exercise price ranging from $0.0001 to $0.11 per share.
The total amount outstanding includes stock options reserved but unissued to purchase
2,815,075 shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise price ranging from $0.0001 to
$0.11 per share.

Warrants
The total amount outstanding includes warrants to purchase 5,590,350 shares of Class B
Common Stock having exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $0.25 per share.

Series Seed Preferred Stock (Series 1- 6)

The amount of security authorized is 19,866,724 with a total of 19,866,724 outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of
Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible,
and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of directors by the separate
class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the holders of
Common Stock. (See additional information below)

Material Rights

Series Seed 1-6 Preferred Stock have been authorized in the following amounts for each class:
Series Seed 1: 6,552,714 shares authorized. and outstanding.

Series Seed 2: 2,611,616 shares authorized, and outstanding.

Series Seed 3: 2,018,566 shares authorized, and outstanding.

Series Seed 4: 2,309,579 shares authorized, and outstanding.

Series Seed 5: 1,814,742 shares authorized, and outstanding.

Series Seed 6: 4,559,507 shares authorized, and outstanding.

We have outstanding warrants to purchase 5,580,350 shares of Class B Common Stock having
exercise prices ranging from $0.01 to $0.25 per share.

Dividend Rights.

The holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends, out of any funds
legally available therefore, prior and in preference to any declaration or payment of any dividend
(payable other than in Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or other securities and
rights convertible into Common Stock) on the Class A Common Stock or Class B Common
Stock, at the applicable Dividend Rate (as defined below), payable when and if declared by the
Board of Directors.



"Dividend Rate" means, with respect to any share of Preferred Stock, an amount per annum
equal to six percent (6%) of the Criginal Issue Price (as defined below) applicable to such share
of Preferred Stock (each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations,
subdivisions. recapitalizations or the like). After payment of such dividends, any additional
dividends or distributions shall be distributed among all holders of Class A Common Stock, Class
B Common Stock and Preferred Stock in proportion to the number of shares of Class A Common
Stock and Class B Common Stock that would be held by each such holder if all shares of
Preferred Stock were converted to Class B Common Stock at the then effective conversion rate.
"Original Issue Price" means $0.3325 per share for each share of the Series Seed-1 Preferred
Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, $0.1750 per
share for each share of the Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, $0.1500 per share for each share of
the Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per share for each share of the Series Seed-5
Preferred Stock, $0.0500 per share for each share of the Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and
$0.0905 per share for each share of the Series A Preferred Stock ( each as adjusted for any
stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect
to such series of Preferred Stock).

Liguidation Rights.

Upon any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of each series of Preferred Stock
shall receive out of the proceeds or assets legally available for distribution (the "Proceeds”),
prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds to the holders of Common Stock, an
amount per share equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the Series Seed Preferred Stock, 1.5
times the Original Issue Price, and (ii) with respect to the Series A Preferred Stock, 1 times the
applicable Original Issue Price, plus declared but unpaid dividends on such share. If, upon the
occurrence of such event, the Proceeds are insufficient to permit the payment of the full
preferential amounts, then the entire Proceeds shall be distributed ratably among the holders of
the Preferred Stock in proportion to the full preferential amount that each such holder is
otherwise entitled to receive under this paragraph.

Upon completion of the distribution required by the foregoing paragraph, all of the remaining
Proceeds, shall be distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock pro rata based on the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B
Common Stock held by each.

Notwithstanding the above, for purposes of determining the amount each holder of shares of
Preferred Stock is entitled to receive upon a Liquidation Event, each such holder shall be
deemed to have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually converted) its shares of
Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B Common Stock immediately prior to the Liquidation
Event if, as a result of an actual conversion, such holder would receive, in the aggregate, an
amount greater than the amount that would be distributed to such holder if such holder did not
convert such series of Preferred Stock into shares of Class B Common Stock. If any such holder
shall be deemed to have converted shares of Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock, then
such holder shall not be entitled to receive any distribution that would otherwise be made to
holders of Preferred Stock that have not converted into shares of Class B Common Stock.

A “Liguidation Event" includes, (A) the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or
other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (B) the consummation of our merger or
consolidation with or into another entity (excepl a merger or consolidation in which the holders of
our capital stock immediately prior lo such merger or consolidation continue to hold at least fifty
percent (50%) of the voting power of our capital stock or the surviving or acquiring entity
immediately following such merger or consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and
with substantially the same terms, as held immediately prior to such merger or consolidation),



(C) the closing of the transfer, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, to a person
or group of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of our securities), of our securities if,
after such closing. such person or group would hold fifty percent (50%) or more of our then
outstanding voting stock or the outstanding voting stock of the surviving or acquiring entity, or
(D) our liguidation, dissolution or winding up; provided, however, that a transaction shall not
constitute a Liquidation Event if its sole purpose is to change our state of incorporation or to
create a holding company that will be owned in substantially the same proportions by persons
who held our securities immediately prior to such transaction. The treatment of any particular
transaction or series of related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be waived by the vote or
written consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Preferred Stock (voting together as
a single class and not as separale series, and on an as-converted basis).

Conversion of Preferred Stock

Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at any time, at the option of the holder thereof, into
such number of fully paid and non-assessable shares of Class B Common Stock as is
determined by dividing the Original Issue Price for such series by the applicable Conversion
Price for such series. The initial "Gonversion Price" per share for each series of Preferred Stock
shall be the Qriginal Issue Price of such series, subject to adjustment as set forth below.

Each share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Class B Commaon
Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the earlier of (a) the closing of
the sale of Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to
a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, which
results in at least $30,000,000 of gross proceeds to us (a "Qualified Public Offering”) or (ii) the
date, or the occurrence of an event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the
holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a
single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis).

Conversion Price Adjustments for Certain Dilutive Issuances.

The Conversion Prices of the Preferred Stock are subject to adjustment in the case of
subdivisions or combinations of common stock, stock dividends and certain other distributions,
and in connection with certain recrganizations, reclassifications and similar events. The
Conversion Price for each series of Preferred Stock, is also subject to adjustment in the case of
certain issuances of securities at less than the then applicable Conversion Price for such series
of Preferred Stock, based on a weighted average anti-dilution formula.

Voting Rights.

General Matters. The holders of Class A Common Stock are entitled to ten (10) votes for each
share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders. The holders of Class
B Common are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of record on all matters as may be
provided for by law. Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the
number of shares of Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of
record, are convertible, and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of
directors by the separate class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted
to a vote of the holders of Common Stock.

Director Election Rights. As long as at least 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for
any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain
outstanding, the holders of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to elect one (1) director (the
"Preferred Director"), and the holders of outstanding Common Stock, voting together as a single
class, shall be entitled to elect two (2) directors. To the extent the board has more than three (3)
directors, the holders of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting together as a single class
and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis) shall be entitled to elect any



remaining directors.

Any vacancy, including newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized
number of directors or amendment of cur Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation,
and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a director, may be filled by a majority of the
directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director; provided,
however, that where such vacancy occurs among the directors elected by the holders of a class
or series of stock, the holders of shares of such class or series may override the Board's action
to fill such vacancy by written consent or through a vote at a stockholder meeting. Any director
may be removed, either with or without cause, by, and only by, the affirmative vote of the
holders of the shares of the class or series of stock entitied to elect such director or directors.
Special Voting Rights of Preferred Stock.

As long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for any stock splits, stock
dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, we may
not take any of the actions set forth below without the approval of the holders of a majority of the
then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voling together as a single class and not as
separate series, and on an as-converted basis):

(a) consummate a Liguidation Event;

(b) amend, alter or repeal any provision of our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation or Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock;

(c) increase or decrease (other than by redemption or conversion) the total number of authorized
shares of Common Stock or Preferred Stock or designated shares of any series of Preferred
Stock;

(d) authorize, create or issue any equity securily, or instrument convertible into any security,
having a preference over, or on a parity with, any series of Preferred Stock with respect to
dividends, liguidation or redemption, other than the issuance of any authorized but unissued
shares of Series A Preferred Stock;

(e) (i) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security that is pari passu with the Preferred Stock
with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption. it such reclassification, alteration or
amendment would render such other security senior to the Preferred Stock in respect of any
such right, preference or privilege or (iij reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of this
carporation that is junior to the Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or
redemption, If such reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security
senior to or pari passu with the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or
privilege:;

(f) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire (or pay into or set aside for a sinking fund for such
purpose) any Preferred Stock or Common Stock; except for the repurchase of certain shares of
Common Stock from employees, officers, directors, consultants and service providers, under
certain circumstances;

(g) change the authorized number of, or method of electing directors: or

(h) pay or declare any dividend other than dividends payable on Common Stock solely in the
form of additional shares of Common Stock.

Registration Rights

Pursuant to an Investors’ Rights Agreement entered into between us and the holders of each
class of our Preferred Stock, we agreed that if we engage in a firm commitment underwritten
public offering of our Comman Stock or other equity securities, then upon a written request of
the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock issued or issuable upon
conversion of the Preferred Stock (collectively, "Registrable Securities”), made any time after six



months from the effective date of such underwritten public offering, and subject to certain
exceptions, we shall use commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon and practical, a
registration of such Registrable Securities; provided that the anticipated aggregate offering price
of such Regisirable Securities is at least $15,000,000. In addition, subject to certain underwriting
requirements, we agreed that if we propose to register any of our securities held by our
stockholders (other than the holders of Registrable Securities) in connection with a public
offering of securities solely for cash, we shall, upon the written request of any holder of
Registrable Securities, use our commercially reasonably efforts to cause all of such Registrable
Securities, to be registered under the Act. We further agreed that subject to certain exceptions,
upon receipt of a request from the holders of at least 30% of our Registrable Securities, we shall
use commercially reasonable efforis to effect as soon as practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities pursuant to Form S-3.

Series A Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 16,574 586 with a total of 9,862,971 outstanding.

Voting Rights

Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of
Class B Common Stock into which the shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible,
and shall be entitled to vote (except with respect to the election of directors by the separate
class vote of the holders of Common Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the holders of
Common Stock. (See additional information in Series Seed Preferred Stock - Other Material
Rights above)

Material Rights

See "Series Seed Preferred Stock - Other Material Rights" above for a summary of rights,
preferences, privileges and restrictions of the Company's classes of preferred stock.

SAFE Note - Series 0

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Note - Series 0 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $88,000.00

Discount Rate: 25.0%

Valuation Cap: $10,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

SAFE Note - Series 1

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Note - Series 1 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $2.000,000.00

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $20,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

SAFE Notes - Series 2

The security will convert into Preferred stock and the terms of the SAFE Notes - Series 2 are
outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1.000,000.00

Discount Rate: 20.0%



Valuation Cap: $30,000,000.00
Conversion Trigger: A bona fide equity financing of preferred stock

2022 Bridge SAFE

The security will convert into Equity shares (common or preferred) and the terms of the 2022
Bridge SAFE are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $340.000.00

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: $35,000,000.00

Conversion Trigger: Bona fide equily financing with an aggregate amount of USD 3 million,
including capital raised in any Regulation CF crowdfunding campaign beginning on or after
December 29, 2021 but not including any such crowdfunding campaign occurring before such
date.

Material Rights: All SAFE investors will receive most favored nation terms with respect to any
subsequent convertible securities issued.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a minority holder you will have limited ability, if at all, to influence our policies or any other
corporate matter, including the election of directors, changes to our company’s governance
documents, additional issuances of securities, company repurchases of securities, a sale of the
company or of assets of the company or transactions with related parties.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor's stake in a company could
be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other words, when the company
issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you own will decrease, even though the
value of the company may increase. You will own a smaller piece of a larger company. This
increase in number of shares oulstanding could resull from a stock offering (such as an initial
public oftering, another crowdfunding round, a venture capital round or angel investment),
employees exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
notes, preferred shares or warrants) into stock.

If we decide to issue more shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share
being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns
being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if we offer dividends, and most early stage
companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the company).

The type of dilution that hurts early-stage investors most occurs when the company sells more
shares in a "down round,” meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings.

If you are making an investment expecting to own a certain percentage of the company or
expecting each share to hold a certain amount of value, it's important to realize how the value of
those shares can decrease by actions taken by the company. Dilution can make drastic changes
to the value of each share, ownership percentage, voting control, and earnings per share.



RISK FACTORS

Uncertain Risk An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, "our”, or
“Company”) involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can
afford the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the Class B
Common Stock should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are sufficient
to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in the Company should
consider all of the information provided to such potential investor regarding the Company as well
as the following risk factors, in addition to the other information listed in the Company’'s Form C.
The following risk factors are not intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete
description of the commercial and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company. Our
business projections are only projections There can be no assurance that the Company will
meet our projections. There can be no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient
demand for our product, that people think it's a better option than a competing product, or that
we will able to provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still
attract business. Any valuation at this stage is difficult to assess The valuation for the offering
was established by the Company. Unlike listed companies that are valued publicly through
market-driven stock prices, the valuation of private companies, especially startups, is difficult to
assess and you may risk overpaying for your investment. The transferability of the Securities you
are buying is limited Any Class B Common Stock purchased through this crowdfunding
campaign is subject to SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you
purchase cannot be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are
transferring the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the benefit of your
family, or in connection with your death or divorce. Your investment could be illiquid for a long
time You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the securities
you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these securities and there may
never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities in the future, you may not be able
to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by an existing player in the energy sector.
However, that may never happen or it may happen at a price thal resulls in you losing money on
this investment. If the Company cannot raise sufficient funds it will not succeed The Company, is
offering Class B Common Stock in the amount of up to five-million United States Dollars (USD
5,000,000} in this offering, and may close on any investments that are made. Even if the
maximum amount is raised, the Gompany is likely to need additional funds in the future in order
to grow, and if it cannot raise those funds for whatever reason, including reasons relating to the
Company itself or the broader economy, it may not survive. If the Company manages to raise
only the minimum amount of funds, sought, it will have to find other sources of funding for some
of the plans outlined in "Use of Proceeds.” We may not have enough capital as needed and may
be required to raise more capital. We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our
working capital requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when we need it,
we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth plans, or take some other
action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on additional investors. Securing these
additional investors could require pricing our equity below its current price. If so, your investment
could lose value as a result of this additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced
lower, your ownership percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we
are unable to find additional investors willing to provide capital. then it is possible that we will



choose to cease our product developments and sales activity. In that case, the only asset
remaining to generate a return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we
are not forced to cease our product developments and sales activity, the unavailability of credit
could result in the Company performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the
value of your investment. Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your
investment We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financings
in the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Class B Common Stock.
Interest on debt securities could increase costs and negatively impact operating results.
Preferred stock could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, rights,
preferences, and limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be
more advantageous to those investors than to the holders of Class B Common Stock. In
addition, if we need to raise more equity capital from the sale of Class B Common Stock,
institutional or other investors may negotiate terms that are could be more favorable than the
terms of your investment, and possibly a lower purchase price per share. Management
Discretion as to Use of Proceeds Our success will be substantially dependent upon the
discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the application and allocation
of the proceeds of this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on
our current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate
portions of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so. Projections: Forward Looking Information Any projections or forward
looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or operational performance are
hypothetical and are based on management's best estimate of the probable results of our
operations and will not have been reviewed by our independent accountants. These projections
will be based on assumptions which management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions
invariably will not materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond
management's control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections,
and such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed. We are reliant
on one main type of service All of our current products and services are variants on one type of
product, independent solar and battery power systems. Our revenues are therefore dependent
upon the market for solar-battery systems. Some of our products are still in prototype phase and
might never be operational products It is possible that for certain features of our product there
may never be an operational product or that the product may never be used to engage in
transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the product is the result of a change in
business mode! upon the Company’s making a determination that the business model, or some
other tactor, will not be in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders. Developing new
products and technologies entails significant risks and uncertainties We are currently in the
research and development stage of some of the features of our product and have only
manufactured a few first systems of the PowerBloc® solar-battery nano-gnd. Delays or cost
overruns in the development of additional features of the PowerBloc® and failure of the product
to meet our performance estimates during validation with customers may be caused by, among
other things, unanticipated technological hurdles, difficulties in manufacturing, changes to design
and regulatory hurdles. Any of these events could materially and adversely affect our operating
performance and results of operations. Minority Holder; Securities with Voting Rights The Class
B Common Stock that an investor is buying has voting rights attached to them. However, you will
be part of the minority shareholders of the Company and have agreed to appoint the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company (the "“CEQ"), or his or her successor, as your voting proxy.
You are trusting in management discretion in making good business decisions that will grow
your investments. Furthermore, in the event of a liquidation of our company, you will only be



paid out if there is any cash remaining after all of the creditors of our company have been paid
out. You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company You are
trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority holder, and therefore
must trust the management of the Company to make good business decisions that grow your
investment. Insufficient Funds The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to
meet its operating needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it may cease operating and you could
get nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can't get them, we will likely fail. Even if
we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might result in your
investment in the company being worth less, because later investors might get better terms. This
offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may not have the
benefit of information that later investors have. Once we meet our target amount for this offering,
we may reguest that StartEngine instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At
that point, investors whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our
investors. All early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncerlainties, and it is
not uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes happen during
the course of an offering, we must file an amendment to our Form C with the SEC, and investors
whose subscriptions have not yet been accepted will have the right to withdraw their
subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose subscriptions have already been
accepted, however, will already be our investors and will have no such right. Qur new product
could fail to achieve the sales projections we expected Our growth projections are based on an
assumption that with an increased advertising and marketing budget our products will be able to
gain traction in the marketplace. It is possible that our product will fail to gain market acceptance
for any number of reasons. If the new product fails to achieve significant sales and acceptance
in the marketplace, this could materially and adversely impact the value of your investment. We
face significant market competition We will compete with larger, established companies who
currently have products on the market and/or various respective product development programs.
They may have much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us.
They may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than us,
or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance thal competitors
will not render our technology or products obsaolete or that the products developed by us will be
preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It should further be assumed that
competition will intensify. We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits
YouSolar, Inc. was formed on May 11, 2010. Accordingly, the Company has a limited history
upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can be made. Our current and
proposed operations are subject to all business risks associated with new enterprises. These
include likely fluctuations in operating results as the Company reacts to developments in its
market, managing its growth and the entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to
pay dividends on any shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to do so.
YouSolar has incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since inception. There
is no assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or generate sufficient revenues to
pay dividends to the holders of the shares. We are an early stage company and have limited
revenue and operating history The Company has a short history, few customers, and has
generated little revenue. If you are investing in this company. it's because you think that the
PowerBloc® is a good idea, that the team will be able to successfully market, and sell the
product or service, that we can price them right and sell them to enough people so that the
Company will succeed. Further, we have never turned a profit and there is no assurance that we



will ever be profitable. We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly
One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The Company owns a
number of patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain names, and trade secrets. We
believe one of the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property
portfolio. Due to the value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the
Company. The Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from
such violations. It is important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices
may invade the capital of the Company. We have pending patent approval’'s that might be
vulnerable One of the Company's most valuable assets is its intellectual property. The
Company's intellectual property such as patents, trademarks, copyrights, Internet domain
names, and trade secrets may not be registered with the proper authorities. We believe one of
the most valuable components of the Company is our intellectual property portfolio. Due to the
value, competitors may misappropriate or violate the rights owned by the Company. The
Company intends to continue to protect its intellectual property portfolio from such violations. It is
important to note that unforeseeable costs associated with such practices may invade the
capital of the Company due to its unregistered intellectual property. Our trademarks, copyrights
and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or ineffective Intellectual property is a
complex field of law in which few things are certain. It is possible that competitors will be able to
design around our intellectual property, find prior art to invalidate it, or render the patents
unenforceable through some other mechanism. If competitors are able to bypass our trademark
and copyright protection without obtaining a sublicense, it is likely that the Company's value will
be materially and adversely impacted. This could also impair the Company’s ability to compete
in the marketplace. Moreover, if our trademarks and copyrights are deemed unenforceable, the
Company will almost certainly lose any potential revenue it might be able to raise by entering
into sublicenses. This would cut off a significant potential revenue stream for the Company. The
cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing them
Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we believe that a
competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights, we might choose not to
file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a multi-year litigation with an
uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of enforcing our trademark(s) or
copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in light of the risks and consequences of
losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s)
could have adverse consequences for the Company, including undermining the credibility of our
intellectual property, reducing our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts
to prevent competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in the
Company could be significantly and adversely affected. The loss of one or more of our key
personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other highly gualified personnel in the future, could
harm our business To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day-to-day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional employees in sales,
marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal, human resources and other areas.
Depending on the economic environment and the Company’s performance, we may not be able
to locate or attract qualified individuals for such positions when we need them. We may also
make hiring mistakes, which can be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and
inveslting in the incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we
are unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it is likely
our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right positions at the right
time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your investment. We rely on third parties to



provide services essential to the success of our business We rely on third parties to provide a
variety of essential business functions for us, including manufacturing, shipping, accounting,
legal work, public relations, advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of
these third parties will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable
manner. It is possible that we will experience delays, detects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse to recover
damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’ operations could
materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your investment could be adversely
impacted by our reliance on third parties and their performance. The Company is vulnerable to
hackers and cyber-attacks As any business, we are vulnerable to hackers who may access our
cloud-based customer and product database or any of our internet-connected compuiers.
Further, we rely on a third-party technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology.
Any disruptions of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on YouSolar
could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our financial condition and business.
We are a new company with risks related to small early stage businesses. We are a small
business, and are, therefore, subject to the risks and expenses that most small businesses face.
We generaled $273.917.81 in revenues in 2022, and we expect to experience net losses in the
foreseeable future. In order to be successful, we must, among other things, successfully execute
our business and marketing strategy, contract with distributors, successfully market our products
and operate our business in compliance with applicable law, respond to competitive
developments, and attract and retain qualified personnel. There can be no assurance that we will
be successful in accomplishing the foregoing, and our failure to do so could have a material
adverse effect on our business, prospects, financial condition and results of operations. Our
business strateqy depends on the widespread adoption of solar-battery technology. The market
for solar and battery products is emerging and rapidly evolving. and its future success is
uncertain. If demand for solar and battery products fails to develop sufficiently, we may be
unable to generate enough revenues to achieve and sustain profitability. The factors influencing
the widespread adoption of solar and baltery technology include, (a) cost-effectiveness,
performance and reliability of solar and battery technologies as compared with conventional and
other alternative energy technologies, (b) success of alternative distributed generation
technologies such as fuel cells, wind power and micro turbines with or withoul batteries, (c)
fluctuations in economic and market conditions which impact the viability of conventional and
non-solar-battery alternative energy sources, such as increases or decreases in the prices of oil
and other fossil fuels, (d) continued deregulation of the electric power industry and broader
energy industry, and (e) availability of government subsidies and incentives for both solar and
other energy sources or tariffs or other duties imposed on components used in our system. The
success of our business is highly correlated to general economic conditions. Demand for our
products is highly correlated with general economic conditions, as a substantial portion of our
revenue is derived from discretionary spending. which typically declines during times of
economic instability. Declines in economic conditions in the United States or in other countries in
which we operate and may operate in the future may adversely impact our financial results.
Because such declines in demand are difficult to predict, we or our industry may have increased
excess capacity as a result. An increase in excess capacity may result in declines in prices for
our products. Our ability to grow or maintain our business may be adversely affected by
sustained economic weakness and uncertainty, including the effect of wavering consumer
confidence, high unemployment, and other factors. The inability to grow or maintain our
business would adversely affect our business, financial conditions, and results of operations,
and thereby an investment in our common stock. Natural disasters and other events beyond our



control could materially adversely affect us. Natural disasters or other catastrophic events may
cause damage or disruption to our operations, international commerce and the global economy,
and thus could have a strong negative effect on us. Qur business operations are subject to
interruption by natural disasters, fire, power shortages. pandemics and other events beyond our
control. Although we maintain crisis management and disaster response plans, such events
could make it difficult or impossible for us to deliver our services to our customers and could
decrease demand for our services. In December 2019, a novel strain of coronavirus, COVID-19,
was reported in Wuhan, China. The World Health Organization subsequently declared the
outbreak to constitute a pandemic. The extent of the impact of COVID-19 on our operational and
financial performance into the future will depend on certain developments, including the duration
and spread of the outbreak, impact on our customers and our sales cycles, impact on our
customer, employee or industry events, and effect on our vendors, all of which are uncertain and
cannot be predicted. At this point, the extent to which COVID-19 may impact our financial
condition or results of operations is uncertain. If the COVID-19 outbreak continues lo spread. we
may need to limit operations or implement limitations. including work from home palicies. There
is a risk that other countries or regions may be less effective at containing COVID-19, or it may
be more difficult to contain if the outbreak reaches a larger population or broader geography, in
which case the risks described herein could be elevated significantly. The growth of our
business depends on our ability to finance new products and services. We operate in a rapidly
changing industry. Technological advances, the introduction of new products and new design
and manufacturing techniques could adversely affect our business unless we are able to adapt
to the changing conditions. To remain competitive, we must continue to incur significant costs in
product development, equipment, facilities and invest in working capital. These costs may
increase, resulting in greater fixed costs and operating expenses. Products we manufacture may
contain design or manufacturing defects, which could result in customer claims. Any defects in
the products we manufacture, whether caused by a design. manufacturing or component failure
or error, may result in returns, claims, delayed shipments to customers or reduced or canceled
customer orders. If these defects occur, we will incur additional costs and if in large quantities or
too frequently, we may sustain loss of business, loss of reputation and may incur liability. The
reduction or elimination of government and economic incentives could cause our revenue to
decline. The cost to produce solar energy in many parts is below the cost of electricity in the
U.S. from traditional sources. However, there is significant cost of integrating variable solar
enerqy sources into the electric power system or of customer-owned batteries to store variable
energy locally. As a result, to encourage the adoption of solar and battery technologies, the U.S.
government and numerous state governments continue to provide subsidies in the form of cost
reductions, tax write-offs and other incentives to end users, distributors, systems integrators and
manufacturers of solar energy products. Reduction, elimination and/or periodic interruption of
these government subsidies and economic incentives because of policy changes, fiscal
tightening or other reasons may result in the diminished competitiveness of solar energy, and
materially and adversely affect the growth of these markets and our revenues. Even though by
default our system does not net-meter and, in our best understanding, does not require utility
approval, electric utility companies that have significant political lobbying powers may push for a
change in the relevant legislation in our markets, in particular related to the aforementioned
economic subsidies. The reduction or elimination of government subsidies could cause our
revenues to decline and materially and adversely affect our business, financial condition and
results of operations. We face intense competition, and many of our competitors have
substantially greater resources than we do. We compete with major international and domestic
companies. Some of our current and potential competitors have greater market recognition and



customer bases, longer operating histories and substantially greater financial. technical,
marketing, distribution, purchasing, manufacturing, personnel and other resources than we do.
In addition, many of our competitors are developing and are currently producing products based
on new solar energy or battery technologies that may ultimately have costs similar to, or lower
than, our projected costs. As a result, they may be able to respond more quickly to changing
customer demands or to devote greater resources to the development, promotion and sales of
solar and solar-related products than we can. Our business relies on sales of our solar and
battery products and our competitors with more diversified product offerings may be better
positioned to withstand a decline in the demand for solar products. It is possible that new
competitors or alliances among existing competitors could emerge and rapidly acquire
significant market share. which would harm our business. If we fail to compete successfully, our
business would suffer and we may lose or be unable to gain market share. Because our industry
is highly competitive, we may lose market share to larger companies that are better equipped to
weather a deterioration in market conditions due to increased competition. Qur industry is highly
competilive and fragmented and is subject to rapid change. We may in the future compete for
potential customers with solar and HVAC systems installers and servicers, electricians, utilities
and other providers of solar energy equipment or electric power. Some of these competitors may
have significantly greater financial, technical and marketing resources and greater name
recognition than we have. Competition in the solar and battery energy industry may increase in
the future, partly due to low barriers to entry, as well as from other alternative energy resources
now in existence or developed in the future. Increased competition could result in price
reductions, reduced margins or loss of markat share and greater competition for qualified
technical personnel. There can be no assurance that we will be able to compete successfully
against current and future competitors. If we are unable to compete effectively, or if competition
results in a deterioration of market conditions, our business and results of operations would be
adversely affected. If we do not retain key personnel, our business will suffer. The success of
our business is heavily dependent on the leadership of our key management personnel,
including Arnold Leitner, our chief executive officer and director. If any of them were to leave us,
it would be difficult to replace them, and our business would be harmed. We will also need to
retain additional highly-skilled individuals if we are to effectively grow. Our future success
depends on our continuing ability to identify, hire, develop, motivate and retain highly skilled
personnel for all areas of our organization. Our failure to protect our intellectual property rights
could diminish the value of our products, weaken our competitive position and reduce our
revenue, and infringement claims asserted against us or by us, could have a material adverse
effect. We regard the protection of our intellectual property, which includes patents, trade
secrets, copyrights, trademarks, domain names and intellectual property licenses, as critical to
our success. We strive to protect our intellectual property rights by relying on federal, state and
common law rights, as well as contractual restrictions. We license one patent and design for a
micro-converter used in our product. The license is irrevocable and fully paid up. In addition the
patents issued or licensed to us and any future patents for which we may apply, or which we
may license, may not protect commercially important aspects of our technology. Furthermore,
the validity and enforceability of such patents may be challenged by third parties, which may
result in them being invalidated or modified by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office ("PTQO"),
various legal actions against us, the need to develop or obtain alternative technology, and/or
obtain appropriate licenses under third party patents, which may not be available on acceptable
terms or at all. We have registered domain names and trademarks in the United States and
abroad and may also pursue additional registrations both in and outside the United States.
Effective trade secret, copyright, trademark, domain name and patent protection is expensive o



develop and maintain, both in terms of initial and ongoing registration requirements and the
costs of defending our rights. We may be required to protect our intellectual property in an
increasing number of jurisdictions, a process that is expensive and may not be successful or
which we may not pursue in every location. Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual
property is difficult and costly. Qur efforts to protect our proprietary rights may not be adequate
to prevent misappropriation of our intellectual property. Further, we may not be able to detect
unauthorized use of, or take appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectual property rights. In
addition, our competitors may independently develop similar technology. The laws in the United
States and elsewhere change rapidly, and any future changes could adversely affect us and our
intellectual property. Our failure to meaningfully protect our intellectual property could result in
competitors offering services that incorporate our most technologically advanced features, which
could seriously reduce demand for our products. In addition, we may in the future need to initiate
infringement claims or litigation. Litigation, whether we are a plaintiff or a defendant, can be
expensive, time-consuming and may divert the efforts of our technical staff and managerial
personnel, which could harm our business, whether or not such litigation results in a
determination that is unfavorable to us. In addition, litigation is inherently uncertain, and thus we
may not be able to slop its competitors from infringing upon our intellectual property rights. We
license certain technology from a third party. We license a patent and related know-how from elQ
Energy, Inc. ("elQ"), pursuant to a non-exclusive license agreement. The patent expires in March
2032. However, this license is irrevocable and fully paid up which means that we do not have to
make any future payments either to maintain the license or for the number of units made under
the license. We currently also purchase a bi-directional converter from elQ, which we intend to
use until our own designs are developed. |f we default under any of our obligations under the
License Agreement, we may be unable to continue to manufacture, market and sell our
products, as currently designed, which could have a material adverse effect. In addition,
because the license is non-exclusive, elQ Energy, Inc., could use or license the patent and
know-how to others for use in competing products, which could have a material adverse effect
on us. We are exposed to risks associated with product liability claims in the event that the use
or installation of our products results in injury or damage. Since our products are electricity-
producing devices, it is possible that users, installers or service providers, could be injured or
killed by our products, whether by product malfunctions, defects, improper installation or other
causes. As a manufacturer of products that are used by consumers, we face an inherent risk of
exposure to product liability claims or class action suits in the event that the use of the products
we sell or install results in injury or damage. Moreover, to the extent that a claim is brought
against us we may not have adequate resources in the event of a successful claim against us.
The successful assertion of product liability claims against us could result in potentially
significant monetary damages and, if our insurance protection is inadequate, could require us to
make significant payments. We depend upon a limited number of third-party suppliers for key
materials, and any disruption from such suppliers could prevent us from manufacturing and
selling cost- effective products and reduce our revenues. Qur products use materials and
components procured from a limited number of third- party suppliers. We currently purchase
these components from a small number of suppliers. If we fail to maintain our relationships with
these suppliers, or fail to secure additional supply sources from other suppliers, we may only be
able lo deliver our products al a higher cost or after a long delay. Any of these factors could
prevent us from delivering our products to our customers within required timeframes, resulting in
potential order cancellations and lost revenue. Control by Our Founder. Pursuant to our
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, each share of Class A Common Stock holds
ten (10) votes, compared to one (1) vote held by each outstanding holder of Class B Common



Stock and for each share of Class B Common Stock into which the Preferred Stock is
convertible. As of the date hereof, there are approximately 46,924,598 shares of capital stock
outstanding, including, 8.855,781 shares of Class A Common Stock, all of which are held by
Arnold Leitner & Pariners LLC. an entity controlled by Arnold Leitner, our founder, current Chief
Executive Officer, and director. Theretore, Mr. Leitner controls over 69% of the stockholder
voting power, and is able control our management and affairs and most matters requiring
stockholder approval. including, but not limited to, the election of directors and approval of
significant corporate transactions. This concentration of ownership and voting power may have
the effect of delaying or preventing a change in control, which may not be in the best interest of
our other stockholders. The holders of Preferred Stock have preferential rights to dividends and
distributions upon a liquidation, dissolution and certain acquisitions. Upon a liguidation,
dissolution or winding up of us, our sale of all or substantially all of our assets and certain
acquisitions (a “Liguidation Event™), the holders of our Series A Preferred Stock are entitled to
receive a preference equal to 1 limes, and the holders of our Series Seed Preferred Stock are
entitled to receive a preference equal to 1.5 times. the respective original issuance prices for the
applicable series of Preferred Stock (subject to adjustments as described in our Amended and
Restated Certificate of Incorporation), before any funds are distributed to the holders of Common
Stock. The original issuance prices for our Preferred Stock, range from $0.05 per share to
$0.3325 per share. If a liquidation event occurred as of the date hereof, the holders of our
outstanding Preferred Stock would be entitled to receive the first approximately $6.4 million in
distributions, with the remaining amounts being split pro rata amongst the holders of Common
Stock. In addition, if dividends are declared by our board of directors (payable in other than
Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock or certain other securities), non-cumulative
dividends in an amount equal to six percent (6%) of the original issuance price of each share of
Preferred Stock, shall be paid to the holders of Preferred Stock. prior to the payment of any
dividends to the holders of Common Stock. Therefore, if our board of directors declares any
dividends or approves a liquidation event, there may not be any amounts remaining to be paid to
the holders of Common Stock after distributions are made to the holders of Preferred Stock. The
holders of Preferred Stock hold Anti-Dilution Rights. Each series of Preferred Stock has weighted
average anti-dilution protection with respect to certain additional issuances of our securities for
issue prices that are below the original issuance price for such series of Preferred Stock (as may
be adjusted pursuant to our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation). The application
of the weighted anti-dilution calculation would result in a reduction of the conversion price of the
applicable series of Preferred Stock, thereby resulting in an increase in the number of shares of
Class B Common Stock into which such series of Preferred Stock is convertible. If in the future,
we issue securities at below the conversion price of any series of Preferred Stock that currently
exist or may be authorized and issued, the holders of such Preferred Stock will be entitled to the
issuance of additional shares of Class B Common Stock upon conversion of such Preferred
Stock, through a reduction in the effective conversion price then in effect for such Preferred
Stock, which would result in dilution to the holders of Common Stock, through a decrease in their
relative percentage ownership of us. Terms of subsequent financings may adversely impact your
investment. We will likely need to engage in common equity, debt, or preferred stock financing in
the future, which may reduce the value of your investment in the Commaon Stock. Interest on
debt securilies could increase costs and negatively impact operaling results. Preferred stock
could be issued in series from time to time with such designation, nghts, preferences, and
limitations as needed to raise capital. The terms of preferred stock could be more advantageous
to those investors than to the holders of Common Stock. In addition, if we need to raise more
equity capital from the sale of Common Stock, institutional or other investors may negotiate



terms at least as, and possibly more, favorable than the terms of your investment. Risks of
Borrowing. As of December 1, 2022, we had $307,215.78 in outstanding loans, of which
$152,737.32 are held by Officers and/or Directors of the Company, co-founders or family
members of Officers. In addition, we may have to seek loans from financial institutions or the
government. Typical loan agreements might contain restrictive covenants which may impair our
operating flexibility. A default under any loan agreement could result in a charging order that
would have a material adverse effect on our business. results of operations or financial
condition. Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds. Our success will be substantially
dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our management team with respect to the
application and allocation of the proceeds of this Offering. The use of proceeds described below
is an estimate based on our current business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or
advisable to re-allocate portions of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and
we will have broad discretion in doing so. Limited Transferability and Liquidity. Each investor
agrees that it will acquire our Class B Common Stock for investment purposes only and not with
a view towards distribution. Certain conditions imposed by the Securities Act must be salisfied
prior to any sale, transfer, conversion or other disposition of our Common Stock. No public
market exists for our Common Stock and no market is expected to develop. Dilution You should
understand the potential for dilution. Each investor's stake in YouSolar could be diluted due to
our issuing additional shares. In other words, if we issue more shares, the percentage of the
Company that you own will decrease, even though our value may increase. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in the number of shares outstanding could
result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another crowdfunding round, a
venture capital round or angel investment), employees exercising stock options, or by
conversion of certain instruments (e.g., converlible notes, preferred shares or warrants) into
stock. If we decide to issue more shares, you could experience value dilution, with each share
being worth less than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns
being less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (although this typically occurs only if we offer dividends, and moslt early stage
companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest any earnings into the Company).
The type of dilution that hurts early-stage investors mostly occurs when the company sells more
shares in a "down round,” meaning at a lower valuation than in earlier offerings. Each series of
Preferred Stock has weighted average anti-dilution protection with respect to certain additional
issuances of our securities for issue prices that are below the original issuance price for such
series of Preferred Stock (as may be adjusted pursuant to our Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation). The application of the weighted anti-dilution calculation would result
in a reduction of the conversion price of the applicable series of Preferred Stock, thereby
resulting in an increase in the number of shares of Class B Common Stock into which such
series of Preferred Stock is convertible. If in the future, we issue securities at below the
conversion price of any series of Preferred Stock that currently exist or may be authorized and
issued in the future, the holders of such Preferred Stock will be entitled to the issuance of
additional shares of Class B Common Stock upon conversion of such Preferred Stock, through a
reduction in the effective conversion price then in effect for such Preferred Stock, which would
result in dilution to the holders of Common Stock, through a decrease in the holder's relative
percentage ownership of us. If you are making an investment expecting to own a certain
percentage of the Company or expecting each share to hold a certain amount of value, it is
important to realize how the value of those shares can decrease by actions taken by the
Company. Dilution can make drastic changes to the value of each share, ownership percentage,
voting control, and earnings per share. Capitalization The Company intends to amend and



restate its current certificate of incorporation to issue shares of Class B Common Stock to the
investors in this Offering. The Company is currently authorized to issue 168,441,310 shares of
stock, of which 132,000,000 shares are designated as Common Stock and 36,441,310 shares
are designated Preferred Stock. Of the 132,000,000 shares of Common Stock, 67,000.000
shares are designated Class A Common Stock and 65,000,000 shares are designated Class B
Common Stock. Of the 36,441,310 shares of Preferred Stock, 6,552,714 shares are designated
as Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, 2,611,616 shares are designated as Series Seed-2 Preferred
Stock, 2,018,566 shares are designated as Series Seed-3 Preferred Stock, 2,309,579 shares
are designated as Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, 1,814,742 shares are designated as Series
Seed-5 Preferred Stock, 4,559,507 shares are designated as Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock
(the Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-3 Preferred
Stock, Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock and Series Seed-6
Preferred Stock, collectively, are referred to herein as the "Series Seed Preterred Stock”), and
16.575,586 shares are designated as Series A Preferred Stock, After the Company amends and
restates its current certificate of incorporation, the Company will be autharized to issue
approximately 110,181,974 shares of stock, of which approximately 80,452,279 shares shall be
designaled as Common Stock and approximately 29,729,695 shares shall be designated as
Preferred Stock. Of the approximate 80,452,279 shares to be designated as Common Stock,
8,855,781 shares shall be designated Class A Common Stock and approximately 71,596,498
shares shall be designated Class B Common Stock. Of the approximate 29,729,695 shares to be
designated as Preferred Stock, the same number of shares shall be designated each series of
Series Seed Preferred Stock as the current restated certificate, but approximately 9,862,971
shares shall instead be designated Series A Preferred Stock. We also have outstanding or
promised options to purchase 14,189,047 shares of Class B Common Stock, having an exercise
price per share between $0.0001 and $0.17 per share. We have outstanding warrants to
purchase 5,590,350 shares of Class B Common Stock having exercise prices ranging from
$0.01 to $0.25 per share. We also have four outstanding SAFE Notes in the aggregate principal
amount of $3,428.000. The first SAFE Note has an outslanding principal balance of $88,000 and
is convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock, at a price
per share equal to the lesser of (a) a 25% discount to the price per share of the preferred stock
offered in such equity financing, and (b) a price per share based on a $10,000,000 pre-money
valuation. The second SAFE Note has an outstanding principal balance of $2,000,000 and is
convertible into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock, at a price
per share equal to the lesser of (a) a 20% discount to the price per share of the preferred stock
offered in such equity financing, and (b) a price per share based on a $20,000,000 pre-money
valuation. The third SAFE Note has an aggregate principal balance of 1,000,000, is convertible
into preferred stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock, at a price per share
equal to the lesser of (x) a 20% discount to the price of the preferred stock offered in such equity
financing, and (y) a price per share based on a $30,000,000 pre-money valuation. The fourth
SAFE Note has an outstanding principal balance of $340,000 and is convertible into preferred
stock upon a bona fide equity financing of preferred stock, at a price per share equal to the
lesser of (a) a 20% discount to the price per share of the preferred stock offered in such equity
financing, and (b) a price per share based on a $35,000,000 pre-money valuation. We also have
two converlible promissory notes with an aggregate principal amount of $500.000, which each
has a simple annual interest rate of 10%, i1s convertible into any capital stock upon a bona fide
equity financing of at least $1,000,000, in which the interest is required to be converted into
capital stock, but the principal is convertible at the option of the holder. The following
summarizes the rights of our capital stock as provided in our Amended and Restated Certificate



of Incorporation. Dividend Rights. The holders of Preferred Stock are entitled to receive non-
cumulative dividends, out of any funds legally available therefore, prior and in preference to any
declaration or payment of any dividend (payable other than in Class A Common Stock, Class B
Common Stock or other securities and rights convertible into Common Stock) on the Class A
Common Stock or Class B Common Stock, at the applicable Dividend Rate (as defined below),
payable when and if declared by the Board of Directors. "Dividend Rate" means, with respect to
any share of Preferred Stock, an amount per annum equal to six percent (6%) of the Original
Issue Price (as defined below) applicable to such share of Preferred Stock (each as adjusted for
any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like). After
payment of such dividends, any additional dividends or distributions shall be distributed among
all holders of Class A Common Stock, Class B Common Stock and Preferred Stock in proportion
to the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock that would be
held by each such holder if all shares of Preferred Stock were converted to Class B Common
Stock at the then effective conversion rate. "Original Issue Price” means $0.3325 per share for
each share of the Series Seed-1 Preferred Stock, $0.2000 per share for each share of the
Series Seed-2 Preferred Stock, $0.1750 per share for each share of the Series Seed-3 Preferred
Stock, $0.1500 per share for each share of the Series Seed-4 Preferred Stock, $0.0613 per
share for each share of the Series Seed-5 Preferred Stock. $0.0500 per share for each share of
the Series Seed-6 Preferred Stock and $0.0905 per share for each share of the Series A
Preferred Stock ( each as adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations,
subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like with respect to such series of Preferred Stock).
Liquidation Rights. Upon any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of each series of
Preferred Stock shall receive out of the proceeds or assets legally available for distribution (the
"Proceeds"), prior and in preference to any distribution of the Proceeds to the holders of
Common Stock, an amount per share equal to the sum of (i) with respect to the Series Seed
Preferred Stock, 1.5 times the Original Issue Price, and (ii) with respect to the Series A
Preferred Stock, 1 times the applicable Original Issue Price, plus declared but unpaid dividends
on such share. If, upon the occurrence of such event, the Proceeds are insufficient to permit the
payment of the full preferential amounts, then the entire Proceeds shall be distributed ratably
among the holders of the Preferred Stock in proportion to the full preferential amount that each
such holder 1s otherwise entitled to receive under this paragraph. Upon completion of the
distribution required by the foregoing paragraph, all of the remaining Proceeds, shall be
distributed among the holders of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock pro rata
based on the number of shares of Class A Common Stock and Class B Common Stock held by
each. Notwithstanding the above, for purposes of determining the amount each holder of shares
of Preferred Stock is entitled to receive upon a Liquidation Event, each such holder shall be
deemed to have converted (regardless of whether such holder actually converted) its shares of
Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B Common Stock immediately prior to the Ligquidation
Event if, as a result of an actual conversion, such holder would receive, in the aggregate, an
amount greater than the amount that would be distributed to such holder if such holder did not
convert such series of Preferred Stock into shares of Class B Common Stock. If any such holder
shall be deemed to have converted shares of Preferred Stock into Class B Common Stock, then
such holder shall not be entitled to receive any distribution that would otherwise be made to
holders of Preferred Stock that have not converted into shares of Class B Common Stock. A
“Liquidation Event” includes, (A) the closing of the sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or
other disposition of all or substantially all of our assets, (B) the consummation of our merger or
consolidation with or into another entity (except a merger or consolidation in which the holders of
our capital stock immediately prior to such merger or consolidation continue to hold at least fifty



percent (50%) of the voling power of our capital stock or the surviving or acquiring entity
immediately following such merger or consolidation in substantially the same proportions, and
with substantially the same terms, as held immediately prior to such merger or consolidation),
(C) the closing of the transfter, in one transaction or a series of related transactions, to a person
or group of affiliated persons (other than an underwriter of our securities), of our securities if,
after such closing, such person or group would hold fifty percent (50%) or more of our then
outstanding voting stock or the outstanding voting stock of the surviving or acquiring entity, or
(D) our liquidation, dissolution or winding up; provided, however, that a transaction shall not
constitute a Liquidation Event if its sole purpose is to change our state of incorporation or to
create a holding company that will be owned in substantially the same proportions by persons
who held our securities immediately prior to such transaction. The treatment of any particular
transaction or series of related transactions as a Liquidation Event may be waived by the vote or
written consent of the holders of a majority of the outstanding Preferred Stock (voting together as
a single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis). Conversion of
Preferred Stock Each share of Preferred Stock is convertible, at any time, at the option of the
holder thereof, into such number of fully paid and non- assessable shares of Class B Common
Stock as is determined by dividing the Original Issue Price for such series by the applicable
Conversion Price for such series. The initial "Conversion Price" per share for each series of
Preferred Stock shall be the Criginal Issue Price of such series, subject to adjustment as set
forth below. Each share of Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into shares of Class
B Common Stock at the then effective Conversion Price immediately upon the earlier of (a) the
closing of the sale of Class B Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public offering
pursuant to a registration statement on Form S-1 under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended,
which results in at least $30,000,000 of gross proceeds to us (a "Qualified Public Oftering”) or (i1)
the date, or the occurrence of an event, specified by vote or written consent or agreement of the
holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as a
single class and not as separate series, and on an as-converted basis). Conversion Price
Adjustments for Certain Dilutive Issuances. The Conversion Prices of the Preferred Stock are
subject to adjustment in the case of subdivisions or combinations of common stock, stock
dividends and certain other distributions, and in connection with certain reorganizations,
reclassifications and similar events. The Conversion Price for each series of Preferred Stock, is
also subject to adjustment in the case of certain issuances of securities at less than the then
applicable Conversion Price for such series of Preferred Stock, based on a weighted average
anti-dilution formula. Voting Rights. General Matters. The holders of Class A Common Stock are
entitled to ten (10) votes for each share held of record on all matters submitted to a vote of the
stockholders. The holders of Class B Commaon are entitled to one (1) vote for each share held of
record on all matters as may be provided for by law. Each holder of Preferred Stock is entitled to
a number of voles equal to the number of shares of Class B Common Stock into which the
shares of Preferred Stock held of record, are convertible, and shall be entitled to vote (except
with respect to the election of directors by the separate class vote of the holders of Common
Stock), on all matters submitted to a vote of the holders of Common Stock. Director Election
Rights. As long as at least 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as adjusted for any stock splits,
stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the like) remain outstanding, the
holders of Preferred Stock shall be entitled to elect one (1) director (the "Preferred Director"),
and the holders of outstanding Common Stock, voting together as a single class, shall be entitled
to elect two (2) directors. To the extent the board has more than three (3) directors, the holders
of Preferred Stock and Common Stock (voting together as a single class and not as separate
series, and on an as-converted basis) shall be entitled to elect any remaining directors. Any



vacancy, including newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the authorized
number of directors or amendment of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation,
and vacancies created by removal or resignation of a director, may be filled by a majority of the
directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director; provided,
however, that where such vacancy occurs among the directors elected by the holders of a class
or series of stock, the holders of shares of such class or series may override the Board's action
to fill such vacancy by written consent or through a vote at a stockholder meeting. Any director
may be removed, either with or without cause, by, and only by, the affirmative vote of the
holders of the shares of the class or series of stock entitled to elect such director or directors.
Special Voting Rights of Preferred Stock. As long as 9,110,328 shares of Preferred Stock (as
adjusted for any stock splits, stock dividends, combinations, subdivisions, recapitalizations or the
like) remain outstanding, we may not take any of the actions set forth below without the approval
of the holders of a majority of the then outstanding shares of Preferred Stock (voting together as
a single class and not as separale series, and on an as-converted basis): (a) consummate a
Liquidation Event; (b) amend, alter or repeal any provision of our Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation or Bylaws so as to adversely alter or change the rights, preferences,
privileges and restrictions of the shares of Preferred Stock; (c) increase or decrease (other than
by redemption or conversion) the total number of authorized shares of Common Stock or
Preferred Stock or designated shares of any series of Preferred Stock; (d) authorize, create or
issue any equity security, or instrument convertible into any security, having a preference over,
or on a parity with, any series of Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or
redemption, other than the issuance of any authorized but unissued shares of Series A Preferred
Stock; (e) (i) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security that is pari passu with the Preferred
Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or
amendment would render such ather security senior to the Preferred Stock in respect of any
such right, preference or privilege or (ii) reclassify, alter or amend any existing security of this
corporation that is junior to the Preferred Stock with respect to dividends, liquidation or
redemption, if such reclassification, alteration or amendment would render such other security
senior to or pari passu with the Preferred Stock in respect of any such right, preference or
privilege; (f) redeem, purchase or otherwise acquire (or pay into or set aside for a sinking fund
for such purpose) any Preferred Stock or Common Stock; excepl for the repurchase of certain
shares of Common Stock from employees, officers, directors, consultants and service providers,
under certain circumstances; (g) change the authorized number of, or method of electing
directors; or (h) pay or declare any dividend other than dividends payable on Common Stock
solely in the form of additional shares of Gommon Stock. Registration Rights Pursuant to an
Investors' Rights Agreement entered into between us and the holders of each class of our
Preferred Stock, we agreed that if we engage in a firm commitment underwritten public offering
of our Common Stock or other equity securities, then upon a written request of the holders of a
majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock issued or issuable upon conversion of the
Preferred Stock (collectively, “Registrable Securities”), made any time after six months from the
effective date of such underwritten public offering, and subject to certain exceptions, we shall
use commercially reasonable efforts to effect as soon and practical, a registration of such
Registrable Securities; provided that the anticipated aggregate offering price of such Registrable
Securities is at least $15.000,000. In addition, subject to certain underwriting reguirements, we
agreed that if we propose to register any of our securities held by our stockholders (other than
the holders of Registrable Securities) in connection with a public offering of securities solely for
cash, we shall, upon the written request of any holder of Registrable Securities, use our
commercially reasonably efforts to cause all of such Registrable Securities, to be registered



under the Act. We further agreed that subject to certain exceptions, upon receipt of a request
from the holders of at least 30% of our Registrable Securities, we shall use commercially
reasonable efforts to effect as soon as practical, a registration of such Registrable Securities
pursuant to Form S-3. We may never have an operational product or service. It is possible that
there may never be an operational plug-and-play, high-power, or stackable PowerBloc or we
may fail to miss other design requirements; or that the product may never be used to engage in
transactions. It is possible that the failure to release the product is the result of a change in
business model upon Company's making a determination that the business model, or some
other factor, will not be in the best interest of Company and its stockholders/members/creditors.
The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or immediate
family members. Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a confrolling stake in
the company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering. Any
such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign page.

RESTRICTIONS ON TRANSFER

The common stock sold in the Regulation CF offering, may not be transferred by any purchaser,
for a period of one-year beginning when the securities were issued, unless such securities are
transferred:

(1) tothe Company;
(2) to an accredited investor;
(3) as part of an offering registered with the SEC; or

(4) to a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust controlled by the
purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the family of the purchaser or the
equivalent, or in connection with the death or divorce of the purchaser or other similar
circumstance.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Sections 4{a)(6) and 4A of the Securities Act of 1933 and
Regulation Crowdfunding (§ 227.100-503), the issuer certifies that it has reasonable grounds to
believe that it meets all of the requirements for filing on Form C and has duly caused this Form
to be signed on its behalf by the duly authorized undersigned, on May 1, 2023.

YouSolar, Inc.

By /s/cSmoltd Ledney

Name: YouSolar

Title: CEO
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|, Arnold Leitner, the CEO of YouSolar, Inc., hereby certify that the financial statements of
YouSolar, Inc. and noles thereto for the periods ending 12/31/2021 and 12/31/2022 included in
this Form C-AR are true and complete in all material respects and that the information below
reflects accurately the information reported on our federal income tax returns.

For the year 2020 the amounts reported on our tax returns were total income of $18,341;
taxable income of -$1,083,554 and total tax of $0.

YouSolar, Inc. has not yet filed its federal tax returns for 2021 and 2022.

IN WITNESS THEREQF, this Principal Executive Officer's Financial Statement Certification has
been executed as of the 25th of April, 2023.

(A #is

BIEnanGEan Ty

Arnold Leitner, CEO

April 25, 2023
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artesian
CPA, LLLC

To the Board of Directors of
Yousolar, Inc,
Santa Cl

ra, California
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Opinion

ancial statements of YouSolar, Inc. {the "Company™) which

comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2021, and the related statements of operatons, changes in

We have audited the accompanying fi

stockholder's deficit, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the relared notes 1w the tinancul

slatcments,

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present faidy, inall material respects, the financial
position of the Company as of December 31, 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for
the vear then ended in accordance with accountng principles generally accepred in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAS). Qur responsibilines under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required o be
1m||.*.p.cm!c111 of the Compam and o meet our other ethical 1'c5p{m!:i]}i.]iritfﬁ in accordance with the relevant
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audir evidence we have obrained ts sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

Substantial Doubt About the Company’s Ability to Continue as a Going Concern

The accompanving financial statements have been prepared assuming that the Company will continue as a
going concern. As deseribed in Note 3 1o the tinancial statements, the Company generated negative cash
flows from operations and incurred a net loss of §3,122,384 for the vear ended December 31, 2021 and
has not generated significant revenues to date. As of December 31, 2021, the Company had a working
capital deticit ot $453 768 and an accumulared deticit of 39,512 8465, The Company has limited liquid assers
to satisfy its oblipatons with $50,733 of cash relative 1o $1,709,947 of carrent habilities as of December
31,2021, and is in default on various loan obligations. These factors, among others, raise substantal doubt
abour the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Management’s plins regarding rhese martters
arc also descnbed in Note 30 The finandal statements do not include any adjustments that might result
from the outcome of this uncertainty. Our opinion is not madified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepred in the United States of America, and for the
design, mmplementation, and mainenance of internal conool relevant w the preparavon and  fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frand orerror,

Artesian CPA, LLC
1624 Market Street, Sutte 2020 Denver, CO 80202
P B77.968.3330 F 7200340905

infoie Artestan CPALcom | www Artesian CP A com



In preparing the financial statements, management is required o evaluate wherther there are condinons or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as 4 poing concern within one vear after the date that the finandal statements are available to be issued.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the hnancial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but 1s nor absolute assurance and
therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing
standards will alwavs detect a marerial misstarement when it exists. The risk of nor detecting a matenal
misstatement resulting from fraud s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstarements, including omissions, are considered marerial it there 15 a substannal likelihood char,
individually or in the ageregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on
the financial statements.

In performing an audir in accordance with generally accepted auditng standards, we:
¢ FExercise protessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

®  ldennfy and assess the risks of marernal misstarement of the financial strements, whether due o
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive o those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in
rthe tinancial statements.

o  Obrain an understanding of internal control relevant m the audic in order Llf":i_gn audi
procedures that are approprate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the ettectveness of the Company’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

o Daluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estmates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements,

o  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the apgregare,
that raisc substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of tme.

We are required ro communicate with those chareed with covernance recarding, among other marters,
= & = £ s

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related

matters that we identified during the audir.

Mecion (B LLC

Artesian CPA, LLC
Denver, Colorado

April 21, 2022
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Balance Sheets

As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited)
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Balance Sheets
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited)

2022 2521
LIABILUTIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEFLCLT
Currer [ishilivies:
ALCAInTS [y ahle arnd acerued EX|PENSES 3 R4 TR 5

A

Customer deg

Deferrad rent

Droe vorelared parry sl

(Iperans e liakalities, cusrent poenion

Moes payahle LIELLH
H\!rl'.lﬁ i):l.s. II III.' “.'I.-!;!ll !'l-lTr:- r:t]:‘ 7
[Limins payvable -
Comwernble n'.\l'L"ﬂEJ:l.!..I!I:'_' SILITE R An M)
Irterest pavable |3 570 113477
Tomal Corren Taabibiies 1 H14 H 1 7IR4T

Son-ureent Liabulinies:
SATT labilic 24280000 HETH

Operatne lease habalines, net of curnest porios

Togal Non-Cuorrent 1zabiliies HE LHHD
Total Liabilities 5362 232 L7477
Stockbolders Dieficit:
meries secd- 1 Preferred siock SU0CH0T prar 6,552 714 shares autboreeed, 0,552 714 el
3,200 787 shores 1ssued and ewtstanding as of December 31, 3022 and 2021, - .
respeetvely. |]\'.I'.J|:.I:JI" i preterenge of 33,208, 100 and S3090,0 3 as of December 31, g
222 and 2021, respectvely,
seres secel ? Predorrod siocie, SUTEERNT par, Tl T aAlG shares auihoriecd, 2611016
and 2557431 shares tssued and ourseandi g, liguidation preference of $783 485 3 3
el $THT,200 4 of Decembser 31, 2022 aned 2021, ull respectively
seres Beed-3 Preferred stock, SOOK0T par, 2008 506 shares aurborized, 2008 560
"-IInIT\..\:'\-\IllJi.I.rlI |I||'-"|J'III|-¢'_ as ol |'||I|'| Ijl'l\.'lllllﬁ"l 'I--‘ 2 2
preferenoe of 3329574 ax of both December 31, 2022 and 200210,
seried Becd 4 Prefereed spock, SO00000] pae, 2 %RLAT0 chares aurbaorized, 2,090 570
shares issued and ousanding a5 of both December 312002 and 2001 Liqudanos 2 2
preterenee of 5310653 as al hoth December 31, 2082 and 20821
Seres Becd-3 Preferred stock, SOO00007 par, 1814 742 shares authorized, 1514742
ehares imsoed wedd oussanding as of Doy December 31, 2022 and 2020, Liguidaion v 2
preference of § 166,806 a8 ofhoth December 31, 2022 and 2001,
Series Sewd-6 Proferred stock, SOODO0T par, J 559 507 shares audborieed, 4,554 507 urd
4,517 068 skares 1ssued and outscanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, g z
respeetively. ]jl:l'.aiil.;li- i precterence of 534108603 and $338,525 as of Decermber 31, 20022 .
MNI2T, respoctivel .
senes A Preferead stock, SO00000T par, 16,574,384 shares suthor :'r!wclI U B629T arud
0,752 474 shares 1ssued and oiscanding az of Decemnber 31, 2022 and 2021, 10 B
respectvely, Liepadaron preference of SHO2309 and SH82 20 a6 of December 31,
ML and 28] respecnvely,
{lase A oo stock, SUCHOEED |):lrlI"\_.ll.P:|||||1|k|':!!'t'! wiibreed, BR55 THL 0 4
shares meued ard ousmnding as of borh December 31, 2002 and 2021
Class 15 commisn stock, SIMNAKR par, a3 JOCLRN shates authori 2 i 0TI T and
1723548 shares pssoed and curstanding a5 of December 37, 2002 and 20021, b 17
TESICCTIVL Iy,
Addizonal pad-in capital T AT A 0,306,213
Accumulared defici [ T e T M2 465,
Trral Stockbalders” Detiens (4065 RGE) RO
TOVEAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKTIGLDERS DEFICTT 3 1292 304 5 1,681,351

See Independent Auditor’s Report regarding 2021,
No assurance 1s provided regarding 2022,
See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Statements of Operations
For the years ended December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited)

2022 2021
SErVICE TeVenues 5 25 5 144
Sales, net 273713 6,586
Cost of goods sold (5711 864) (23645)
CGross loss on sales 297 1510 (70050
Operating Lxpenses:
General and administrative 576,005 1,405 045
Research and developmen 560,127 1 481 006
Sales and marketing 274517 2503559
Total Operaring Expenses L AL HaY 3037 208
|55 from 'rl.}LZ]':llilJH‘\ (1,713,595) RN ES N
Other Income (Hxpenses):
Interest expense (105,694) (43,975)
Caain on loan forgiveness 234349 53,110
Giain on gecounts payvable forgiveness - T3
Interest income - 33
(thers 1,352 5,190
Toral Orcher Income {Expenses) CROLE) 21,794

Prevision tor income taxes -

]

MNet Loss 11,794 498 o (3,122 384

See Independent Auditor’s Report regarding 2021,
Noassurance 15 provided regarding 20022,
See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Deficit
For the years ended December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited)
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See Independent Auditor’s Report regarding 2021,
No assurance is provided regarding 2022,
See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements,
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YOUSOLAR, INC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited)

2022 2021

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Mot sy 5 (1,704 498, s {3,122 384)

Adiustments to reconcle net Toss to ner cash used
ORI artvIies:
Stock-based compensauon 51,842 16,767
morteation 3,718 3317
CGain om loan forgiveness (23,43 IEERRIY
Depreciation 15,3160 11,245
Craln on accrnnis ]1:|_1,'5|]1I¢‘ I Ve TR - (A3
|:5|[1-:.;|r|n;:"'. - 4 30
Changes 1 operating assets and liabihues
(Inerease) /decrease in inventorn 3 530 (816730
(Tnerease) /decrease in operating right-of-use assers (T4, 18 .
iInerease)/decrease in propaid expenses 0,560 TRG, A6
(Increased /decrease in notes recervable (27 44 (2 AL
(hncrease) fdecrease in deposiis 206l 445920
(Ineresses Sdecrease 1n accoums receivable - 1,055
Inerease / (decrease) in operating Tease Tabilites To,520 -
Inerease/ [deerease) ininterest pavalle T1E50 L5 N7
Inerease/ (deercase) in accounts payable and accrued cxpenses (420671 AnH A5
Inercase/ (decrease) in customet deposits [ 0G28 114 242
Inerense / (deerease) in deferred ren (755 7h5
Mt Cash Ulsed in Odperating Activities (1,288,444 (324300250
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment - RN Y
Purchases of intangibles e
Cash Used in Investing Actividies EA
Cash Flows from inancing Activities
Proceeds from ssuance of common stock - Regulaton C1 TORITA 155,515
Proceeds from SAEFE labilio EEHREN EXERI Y
Proceeds from notes pavable 127 375
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes pavable 1501060 350,00
Proceeds trom loans pavable 76425
Repavments of notes payable (550600 {157
Bepavments of loans payvable (14,3
Ortferimge costs (07 #5259 41,652
Cash advance from related party HEO

Dhue from related party -

(10.498)

l{:‘.p:n-'nu‘.l‘l'. of due to relared Pty - (7,381

Mot Cash Prowided by Financing Activities I, A25.6004 3 205,072

Mot Change In Cash BEEAIN 71,395
Cash at Bewinning of Year A1 735 122 1285
Cash ar Fnd of Year 5 7o, 345 § Sl AS

See Independent Auditor’s Report regarding 2021,
No assurance 1s provided regarding 2022,
See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements.



YOUSOLAR, INC.

Statements of Cash Flows

For the years ended December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited)

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Cash pard for interest

Cash pad tor income taxes

Supplemental Disclosure of Non-Cash Finaneing Actvig:
Conversion of SAFT Liakihite o Class B common seock
Issuance of Class B common stock for broker compensanon

Conversion of notes payable and mterest to Senes Sced -1 preferred stock

Conversion of notes payable and interest to Senes Seed 2 preferred stock

Conversion of notes pavable and tnterest to Series Seed 6 preterred stock
Conversion of notes payable and interest to Seres A preferred stock

Conversion nof notes [ vable and interest to Seres Class B Commmon Stock

See Independent Auditor’s Report regarding 2021,
Noassurance 15 provided regarding 20022,

2022 2021
5 34,155 25000
h
& 5 ERLANE
h 16,7488 5 24007
1 114 650 5
5 5
g [ 5
5 21,282 5 -

See accompanying notes, which are an integral part of these financial statements.
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

NOTE 1: NATURE OF OPERATIONS

YouSolar, Inc. (“the Company™) 1s a corporaton organized on May 11, 2010 under rthe laws of
Delaware, originally organized as Fireball Solar Technology TLC, a Delaware limited liability company,
which was converted to a corporation on January 16, 2013 as Fireball Solar Technology, Inc. On
April 22, 2013, the Company changed its name to YouSolar, Inc. The Company provides solar
technology and hardware to customers, The Company began commercial operations in 2012,

NOTE 2: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Busis of Presentanon

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform o generally accepted accounting
principles (“GAAP™) in the United States of America (U5 as promulgated by the Financial
Accounting Standard Board {“FASB™) Accounting Standard Caodification (“ASC”). The Company
adopted the calendar vear as its basis ol reporting,

LUse of Fstimates

The preparation of Nnancial statements in contormity with GAAP requires management 1o make
estimares and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilites and disclosures of
contingent asscts and liabilides at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. The Company bases its esomates and
assumptions on histoncal experience, known or expected trends and various other assumptions that
it believes to be reasonable. Actual results could differ from those estimates presented within the
tinancial starements, Sign[ﬁ{';mr estimates inherent in the preparaton of the accompanying financial
statements include valuation of oght-of-use asser, lease hability, stock optdons and  warrants,
convertible instruments, and deterred income taxes.  Any adjustments applied 1o estimates are
recognized in the period in which such adjusrments are determined.

Cash and Cash Fguivalenis

The management considers all cash on hand and in banks and highly liquid securities with an original
marurity of less than three months to be cash and cash equivalents. The Company’s cash and cash
cquivalents in bank deposit accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of December

31, 2022, and 2021, the Company’s cash in bank balances did not exceed federally insured limirs.

The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and periodically evaluates the credit
worthiness of the financial insorunons and has derermined the eredic exposure to be negligble,

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubdul Accounts

Accounts receivable are carried ar their estimated collectble amounts and are periodically evaluared
tor collectability based on past eredit history with customers and other factors, Provisions for losses
on accounts receivable are derermined based on loss experience, known and inherent risk in the
account balance and current cconomic conditions, 'There were no accounts receivable as of December
31, 2022 and 2021.

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance is provided regarding 2022,
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

Inventory

Inventory is stared at the lower of cost or marker and accounted for using the weighred average cost
method. Inventory as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 includes raw materials and work in progress,
which amounted to 55389145 and $9249 6584, respectively.

The management regularly evaluates inventory for possible impairment and obselescence, and
estimate inventory market value based on several subjectve assumpdons including esumated future
demand and marker conditions, as well as other observable factors such as current sell-through of the
Company's products, recent changes in product demand, global and regional cconomic conditions,
histoncal expenence selling through liquidaton and price discounted channels, and the amount of
inventory on hand. When the estimated inventory market value is less than its carrving value, the
carrving value is adjusted to market value and the resulung impairment charge 15 recorded 1n cost of
goods sold in the statements of operatons,  As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company
determined that no reserve for obsolescence or impairment necessary.

Prepaid Fxpenses

Prepaid expenses include amounts paid in advance for goods or services to be delivered or rendered

tor the Company,  As of December 31, 2022 and 20271, this account includes advance pavments for
' I

rent, materials, and research and development,

Property and Faulpmen:

Property and cquipment are recorded ar cost. Depreciadon is recorded for property and equipment
using the stragrhr-line method over the esaomared usetul ves of assers, which 1s currently 5 vears tor
its capitalived assets. The management reviews the recoverability of all long-lived assets, including the
related usetul lives, whenever events or changes in cireumsrances indicate that the carrying amount of
a longe-lived asset might not be recoverable. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company
determined no impairment on the Company’s property and equipment. Property and equipment as
of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and depreciation expense for the vears then ended are as tollows:

Computer Machinery & Leasehold R&D
I".L]nijnlu.‘nl ["'.Llll'l|su|.—_'n[ |||||1rn\-|.'1|u.'1||.-= |".L'||liiur'|ul|l Vehicles Tl
woee ar December 31, 202 = 330 b ERLE o 5 2720 ) L3NG - A s Th,A51
1 10rs B
Halanee ar Decernber 31, 20022 A A N ] 270 21366 450000 Th.A51

Acowmulated Dhepreciation

Hals Drgember 31, 2021 i | 36 12,181
Deprecanen hi 344 B
Balange ar Decomber 31, 20122 11451 Gl 2 i
et Book Valuce 4 5 2755 5 Zaln 5 3 A0 E H I

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
¥,



YOUSOLAR, INC.
Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

[ntangible Assets

Intangible assets include patent, producr cernfication and licensing cost, website and rrademark, Cosrs
to acquire these intangible assers are capitalized and amordzed over their expected economic usetul
lives, which is currently 16 vears for patent, 10 vears tor product cerofication and licensing cost and
15 vears for website, Management has determined that the acquired rrademark is an indefinire-live
intangible asscts and therefore records no amortization expense but assesses it for impairment
annuallv. Where the future benefits of the nghts are unknown, these costs are expensed as incurred.
As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, rthe ( :nmpﬁn_\' determined no imp:lirrm:m on the (Lc:inpan_\,".u
intangible assets.

Intanpible assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 and amortzation expense for the years then
cnded are as follows:

Product
certification
Patent _andlicensing  Website  Trademark Total

Cust

Balanes at Decemlber 31, 2021 5 AL 4 20000 3 D 3 745 5 29745
Yelditions - 2500 - - 2500
Balance ar Decomber 31, 2022 BTN 22 5] RN Td3 232245
Accurmulaied Amortization

Halance ar [December 31, 2180 1 760051 EXLR 143734
Armiartzation 3,717 2R3 4,718
Balanee ar December 31, 2022 207,768 1833 218452
Wet Book Value 4 202232 5 17.067 5 5 745 § 313,703

Impairment of Lone Lived Assets

The management continually monitors events and changes in circumstances that could indicare
carrving amounts of long-lived assers may not be recoverable. When such events or changes n
circumstances arc present, the management asscsses the recoverability of long-lived asscts by
determining wherher the carrving value of such assers will be recovered through undiscounted
expected future cash flows, 1E the total of the future cash flows s less than dhe carrving amount of
thosc asscts, the management recognizes an impairment loss based on the excess of the carrying
amount over the fair value of the Company’s long-lived assets. Assets o be disposed of are reporred
it the lower of the carrving amount or the fair value less costs to sell. Por the vears ended December
31, 2022 and 2021, the Company recognized an impairment loss on the Company’s long-lived assers

ot 50 and 54,300, respecnvely,

Convernhle Instruments

US. GAAP requires companies to bifurcare conversion options from their host instruments and
account for them as free standing denvadve financial instruments according to certain criteria. The
criteria include circumstances in which {a) the economic characteristics and risks of the embedded
dernvatve instrument are not clearly and closely relared o the economic charactenstcs and nsks of
the host contract, (b) the hybrid msorument that embodies both the embedded derivative instrument
and the host contract is not re-measured at fair value under otherwise applicable generally accepted
aceountng principles with changes in fair value reported in earnings as they occur and (¢} a separate
See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,

N assurance is provided regarding 2022,
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

instrument with the same terms as the embedded dertvative instrument would be considered s
derivarve instrument. An exception to this mile is when the host instrument s deemed o be
convenrional as that term is described under applicable ULS. GAAP.

When the Company has determined that the embedded conversion options should not be bifurcared
from their host instruments, the Company records, when necessary, discounts to convertble notes
for the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded in debt instruments based upon the differences
bertween the fair value of the underlying commuon stock ar the commitment date of the note transacton
and the effective conversion price embedded in the note. Debt discounts under these arrangements
are amortized over the term of the related debt o their stated dare of redemption. The Company also
records, when necessary, deemed dividends tor the intrinsic value of conversion options embedded
in preferred shares based upon the differences between the fair value of the underlying common stock
at the commitment date of the transaction and the effective conversion price embedded in the
preferred shares,

Pair Value ot Financial Instruments

The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash, accounts receivable, notes receivable,
accounts pavable and accrued expenses, notes pavable, interest pavable.

FASB guidance specities a hierarchy of valuation techniques based on whether the inputs to those
valuation rechniques are observable or unobservable. Observable inputs reflect marker data obrained
from independent sources, while unobservable inputs reflect market assumptons. The hicrarchy gives
the highest priority o unadjusted quoted prices inactve markets tor idendcal assets or habilites (Level
I measurement) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Tevel 3 measurement). The three
levels of the fair value hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Unadjusted quoted prices in active markers for identical assets or liabilites that the
reporting entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 primarily consists of
financial instruments whose value is based on quoted marker prices such as exchange-traded
instruments and listed equities.

Level 2 - Inputs ather than guoted prices included within Level | that are observable for the asset
or liability, cither directly or indircetly {e.g., quoted prices of similar assets or labilitics in active
markets, or quoted prices for idenncal or similar assers or labilines in markets that are not acnve).

Level 3 - Unobservable inputs for the asset or lability, Financial instruments are considered Level
3 when their fair values are derermined using pricing models, discounted cash flows or similar
techniques and at least one significant model assumption or input is unobservable,

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and
liabilitics reported in the balance sheets approsimate their fair value.

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

Revenue Recornition

ASC Topic 6006, “Revenue from Conrmracts with Customers” establishes principles for repornng
information abourt the nature, amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows ansing from
the entty’s contracts o provide goods or services to customers. Revenues are recognized when
contral of the promised goods or services are ransferred 1o @ customer, in an amount that reflects the
consideration that the Company expects to receive in exchange for those goods or services. The
Company applies the following five steps in order to determine the appropriate amount of revenue w
be recognized as it fulfills its obligations under each of its agreements: 1) identity the contract with a
customer; 2) identfy the performance obligations in the contract; 3] determine the transaction price;

4 allocare the transacnon price o performance oblisanons in the contrace and 5 recoonize revenue
/ t I il ? L

y

as the performance obligation is satisfied.

The Company generally recognizes revenues upon rendering of services, delivery, or installanon of
the promised goods. Revenue recognized for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 from the
design, sale, and installation of solar lechnology w customers was 5273713 and $10,580, respecuvely.

Cash received from customer orders but not vet delivered or installed are recorded as customer
deposits.  Customer depasits as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was 5330303 and 313,675,
respectively.

Cost of Goods Sold

Cost of poods sold includes product costs and assocated freghe, direet labor, other ancillary costs,
and overthead costs. Cost of goods sold for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was
$570.864 and $23,043, respectively,

Sales and Marketing

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Total expense related to sales and marketing was 5274,517
and $2501,35Y for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectvely.

Rescarch and Development

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred, which includes salaries, supplies and
contractors’ fees. Total cxpense related to research and development was $506,127 and 51,481,666
for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectvely,

| cases

On January 1, 2022, the Company adopted ASC 842, T gases, as amended, which supersedes the lease
accountng puidance under Topic 840, and gencrally requires lessees to recognize operanng and
finance lease liabilities and corresponding ROU assets on the balance sheet and 1o provide enhanced
disclosures surrounding the amount, tming and uncertainty of cash flows arsing from lease
arrangements,  The Company adopted the new guidance using a modified retrospective method.
Under this merthod, the Company elected 1o apply the new accounting standard only 1o the most
recent period presented, recognizing the cumulative effect of the accoundng change, if any, as an
adjustment to the beginning balance of retained carnings. Accordingly, prior periods have not been
See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
L3



YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

recast to reflect the new accounting standard, The cumulative effect of applying the provisions of
ASC 842 had no material impact on accumulated deficir,

The Company elected transitional practical expedients for existing leases which eliminated the
requirements to reassess existing lease classificaton, ininal direct costs, and whether contraces contain
leases. Also, the Company elected to present the pavments associated with short term leases as an
expense in statements of operations, recognized on a straight-line basis, Short-term leases are leases
with a lease rerm of 12 months or less.

Assers and labilides arising from a lease are inigally measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the ner present value of the following lease payments: (a) fixed pavments (including in
substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable, (b) variable lease payvments that are
based on an index or a rate, (¢) amounts expected o be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees, (d) the exercise price of a purchase opton if the lessee is reasonably certain 1o exercise
that option, and (€) pavments of penaltics for terminating the lease, it the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounred using the interest rate implicic in the lease, if that rate can be
determined, or the Companv's incremental borrowing rate. ROU assers are measured ar cost
comprising the following: () the amount of the initial measurement of lease lability, (b) any lease
payments made ar or betore the commencement date less any lease incentives received, and (¢ any
initial direct costs.

At the commencement date, the date at which the leased asset is available tor use by the Company,
leases are recognized by recording an ROU asset and a lease hability,

Atrer the commencement date, tor an operatng lease, the lease liability 18 measured ar the present
value of the lease pavments not vet paid using the interest rate established at commencement date
(unless the rate has been updated arter the commencement date) and the ROLT asser 1s measured at
the amount of lease liability, adjusted for, unless the ROLU asset has been previously impaired: a)
prepaid or accrued lease payments, b) the remaining balance of any lease incentives received, and (c)
unamaortized ininal direcr costs. Generally, each lease payment is allocared berween the liability and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to statements ol operations over the lease period o produce
a constant perodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liahility for each period.

Upon adoption of ASU 2016-02, the Company recognized lease liability in relaton to a lease which
was classified as operating lease under the principles of ASC 842, This liability was measured ar the
present value of the remaining lease pavments, discounted using the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate as of the lease execution date.

The cumulative effect of the adoption of ASC 842 on Company’s balance sheet as of January 1, 2022
is presented below:

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

December 31, 2021 ASC 842 Adoption January 1, 2022

Right-of-use assers g : g 125309 § 125,309
Other assers 1,081,351 - 681,351
['ovtal Assetrs 1,681,351 1253000 | B ey
Ulperating lease lalaliey - 123,300 125,30
{ther Hahilitic s 1,747 247 1,707 G947
Total Liabilices 1,797 7 125,300 19235250
Accumulated deben (312 5600 512,563,
Other couiry tems 0 306,269 0 306 260
Total Stockhalders' Fouire S(Defic) [116,506) 11 16,3005
Total Lmbihites And Stockholders' Bowiy f{Deticity, § LAl 3eT 8 125300 % 1 B0, G

stock-Based Compensanon

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation in accordance with ASC 718, Compensation -
Ntoek Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stnck-based compensaton
cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense
ratably over the requisite service period, which is gencerally the option vesting period. The Company
uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model o derermine the fair value of stock optons.

Gain on Accounts Pavable and Loan Forgivencss

Acconnts Pavalbie Dorgiveness
The Company recognized a gain of 30 and §7.430 for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, related o forgiveness of various previously accrued legal costs,

Loan Payable Fersiveness

The Company recognized a gain of $23,349 for the vear ended December 31, 2022 for the interests
torgiven by holders of convernble notes pavable upon conversion to the Company stock. The
Company recognized a gain of $53,110 tor the year ended December 31, 2021 from the SBA paycheck
protection program.

lncome Tuxes

The Company uses the liability method of accountng {or income taxes as set forth in ASC T4, Jreome
Taes. Under the liability method, deterred raxes are derermined based on the temporary ditferences
between the tinancial staterment and tax basis ol assets and habilives using tax rates expected to be in
effect during the vears in which the basis differences reverse. A valuation allowance 1s recorded when
it 15 unlikely that the deferred rax assets will not be realized.

The Company assesses its income tax positions and records rax benefits for all vears subject 1o
cxamination based upon its evaluation of the facts, circumstances and information available at the
reporting date. In accordance with ASC 740- 1, for those ax positions where there is a greater than
50% likelihood thar a tax benetit will be sustained, our policy is to record the largest amount of tax
benefit that is more likely than not w be realized upon alumate secdement with a axing authorivy that

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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has full knowledge of all relevant information, For those income tax positions where there is less than
509 likelihood that a tax benefit will be sustained, no tax benefir will be recognized in the consolidared
financial statements. The Company has derermined that there are no marerial uncermin mx posinons.

The Company accounts for income taxes with the recognition of estimared income taxes pavable or
refundable on income tax remirns for the current period and for the estimared future mx etfect
attributable o temporary differences and carvyforwards, Measurement of deferred income iwms is
based on enacted tax laws including tax rates, with the measurement of deferred income tax assets
being reduced by available tax benefits not expected to be realized in the immediate future. The
Company pays Federal and California income taxes at rates of approximately 21% and 8.8%%,
respectively, and has used an effecdve blended rate of 28% ro derive net rax assers of $2,871,702 and
$2.442,339 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respecuvely, resulting from its net operating loss
carryforwards and other temporary book to mx differences, [Due to uncermainty as to the Company’s
ability to generate sufficient raxable income in the furure to unlize the ner operanng loss (NOL
carrvforwards before they begin to expire in 2033, the Company has recorded a full valuaton
allonwance to reduce the net deferred max asser to zero and resules ina 0% effective tax rate for 2022
and 2021,

At December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has available net NOL carrvforwards for federal rax
of approsimately 8940 million and $7.95 million. Federal NOWL incurred prior to tax vear 2018
amounting o $3.25 million will be carried forward for 20 years and will begin to expire in 2033, Post-
2018 NOL amounting to $6.39 million and $4.70 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, will be carned forward indefinitely but lmited w 80% of future taxable income. The
Company had research and development tax credits of $93,239 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,

The Company has evaluated its income tax positions and has determined that it docs not have any
uncertain tax positons, The Company will recognive interest and penaltes related o any uncertain
tax positions through its income tax expense.

The Company files LLS. federal and state income tax rerurns. The Company’s tax returns for 2018
2022 remain open to examination by the taxing jursdiction to which the Company is subject.

NOTE 3: GOING CONCERN

The accompanving hinancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis and do notinclude any
adjustments that might result from uncertainty about our ahility to continue as a going concern, The
Company generated negative cash flows from operations and incurred net losses of 51,794 498 and
$3.,122 384 for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respecnively, and has not generared
significant revenues to date, As of December 31, 2022, the Company had a working capital deficit of
$1,076,973 and an accumulated deficit of $11,307,363. The Company has limited liquid assets to
satsfy s oblipatons with 585,345 of cash relanve o 51,914,844 of current hahilites as of December
31, 2022, and is in default on varous loan obligations. These factors, among others, raise substantial
doubr about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of ime.

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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The Companmy’s ability to continue as a going concern in the next twelve months following the date
the financial starements were available to be issued is dependent upon its ability to produce revenues
and/or obmain financing sufficient ro meet current and future obligations and deploy such o produce
profitable operating results. Management has evaluated these conditions and plans 1o generate
revenues and raise capital as needed to sansfy irs capital needs. No assurance can be given thar the
Company will be successful in these efforts, The financial statements do not include any adjustments
relating to the recoverability and classification of recorded asset amounts or the amounts and
classificarion ot liabilities thar might be necessary should the Company be unable to conrinue as a

Zoing concern,
NOTE 4: NOTES RECEIVABLE

The Company has employee loan agreements amountng o §36,421 and §32,421 as of December 31,
2022 and 2021, respecuvely., Also, the Company has an emplovee loan agreement with its chiel
executive officer (CEQ) amounting to $60,513 and §37,469 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively. These loans bear interest at a rate of 1% per annum and are pavable on June 30, 2030 or

as soon as the emplovee resigns,

NOTE 5 DEBT FINANCING AGREEMENTS

Yaycheck Protection Program Loan

On May 7, 2020, the Company obtained a Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) loan from a bank
amouvnung e 353,110, T'his loan bears interest at 1% per annum and will mature 2 vears from the
date of first dishursement of the loan, The loan was ourstanding as of December 31, 2020, Tn May
2021, the loan was forgiven, and the amount was recognized as other income in the statement of
Gperaions,

MNotes Pavable

The Company has various short-term loan agreements trom 2004 o 2020 with principal balances
totaling §636,56Y, Interest rates on these loans are 10% and 15% per annum with matunty periods of
less thana year, All these loans are unsceured and past duc and in defaalt, In 2009, a $10,000 principal
loan was converted to 110,497 shares of Series A preferred stock and S$88.466 principal loan was
repaid. 1o 2020, 5110000 of these loans” principal was converted to 1,215,460 shares of Scries A
preferred stock and 820784 of related interest payable were converted 1o 103,699 shares of Class B
caommaon stock. The obrained addinonal loans with toral principal amounong to §127,375 in 2022,
Interest rates on the loans in 2022 is 2% with maturity periods of less than onc year,

Repayvment of princpal balances amounted o 355,000 and 5197,000 for the vears ended December
31,2022 and 2021, respectively. Principal balances outstanding on these loans as of December 31,
2022 and 2021 amounted to 3245112 and 5172737, respectively,

Most of the holders of these loans are the Company’s stockholders and include notes payable to
Company’s CEO and his tamily amountng o 366,737 as of both December 31, 2022 and 2021,

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance is provided regarding 2022,
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Interest expense incurred on these loans for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted
ro S21,703 and $32,033, respectvely. Inrerest payable as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounred
to $80,329 and §72,804, respectvely.  In 2021, the Company repaid 325,000 of accrued inrerest.
In 2020, The Company determined that $24,509 of the outstanding accrued interest will be paid in
stock butwas not finalized as of December 31, 20200 1n 2022, the Company repaid $14,177 of accrued
interest by issuine 19,159 shares of Class B Common Stock, Accrued interest pavment not yet
formalized and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 amounted to $100331 and 524,509,
respectively.

On March 5, 2020, the Company issued warrants to one of its lenders (see Note 6), valued at §3,450,
which wis recorded as a discounr on the loan and amornzed over its term. Amaortzaton of discouant
to interest expense amounted to 33,450 for the vear ended December 31, 2020,

Loans Payable

On June 2, 2022 the Company cntered into a business-use line of credit and sccunoy agreement with
Headwayv Capital, LI1C to obtain funds up to §75,000 for business purposes as agreed by the parties,
Loans obtained will be subject to a monthly periodic interest rate of 4.17% and 2% withdrawal fee.

For the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Company obrained roral of $76,425 from the eredit line,
incurred interest expense of S18,943, incurred 51,529 i withdrawal fees, and made towl repayments
to the principal of $14,322, Outstanding loans payable amounted to 562,103 as of December 31, 2022,

Convertible Notes

20082020 Lesweancer

In 2012 to 2018, the Company issued various convertble notes for tomal principal of §3,627,723.
These notes bear interest ranging from 2.04% to 15% per annum.  In 2018, $3,495823 of these
convertible notes, including its total accrued interest of $323,624, were converted into Series Sced
preferred stock, Series A preferred stock, and Class B common stock, leaving unpaid unconverred
principal of $131,900 as of December 31, 2021, The Company incurred interest expense of $7,532
tor the vear ended December 31, 2021 related to these unconverted notes and acerued interest pavable
of 536,202 as of December 31, 2021,

In 2022, the Company and the noteholders agreed to the conversion of the remaining $131,900 and
related interest earned up to December 31, 2018 amounting to $12,823 to the following shares of the
Company’s stock:

Amount Shares Conversion
converted issued Price
Series Seed-1 preferred stock b 114,684 344927 i (1,3325
Series Seed-2 preferred stock 10,837 54,185 0, 20000
Series Seed-6 preferred stock 2092 41,839 (10500
Series A preferred stock 10,000 110,497 (L0905
Class B common stock 7105 35527 20000
$ 144.723

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance is provided regarding 2022,
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The remaining unconverted interest payable of §23,439 was therefore forfeited and is recognized as
part of other income in the 2022 statement of operations,

The convertible notes are subject tw automatic conversion upon the next qualified equity financing (as
detined in the note agreements) of not less than $2,500,000, or opdonal conversion upon a non-
qualified financing at the majority holders’ election. The conversion price on this conversion feature
is either 33% premium or 20% to B0% discount {depends on class of equity to be converted), 1o
pricing in the thgrering equity financing or the share price implied by a valuanon cap of §4,500,000
on the Company’s fully diluted capital. The notes are also optionally convertble at maturity, where
the conversion price under this conversion feature is at the share price implied by a valuation cap ot
$4.500,000 on the Company™s fully dilured capital, If there is a corporate transaction {as defined in
the agreement), the holders of the convertible notes may elect w convert to Class A common stock
ar the price per share implied by a valuation cap ot §4,500,00() on the Company’s tully diluted capiral
or tike pavment of 100% of the then owstanding principal plus accrued interest. The Compam
reviewed these notes for beneficial conversion features and determined the notes did not require
discoune tor beneficial conversion features ar the issuance dares.

2021 g 2022 Liswances

In 2021, the Company entered into an agreement to issue convertible notes with principal balance not
cxeecding 5300000, These notes shall bear 10% perannum and shall be due and payvable upon request
of the majority stockholders on or after May 9, 2022, or upon a change in control evenr,

The Company issued convertible notes for a total principal amount of $350,000 10 2021 and 3150000
in 2022, Principal balance outstanding for these notes amounted to $300,0000 and $330,000 as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, making the balance as of December 31, 2022 due and
demandable.

The Company incurred interest expense of 3495836 and 54411 for the vears ended December 31,
2022 and 2021, respectively. Accrued interest pavable related ro these notes amounted to 554,247 and
$4.411 as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Any unpaid accrued interest on convertible notes is subject to automatic conversion upon the next
qualified equity financing (as defined in the note agreements) of not less than 1,000,000, or optional
conversion upon a non-qualified financing, The conversion price 1s equal to the cash price paid per
share for the equity securities by the investors in the qualified financing. The issuance of equity
securitics pursuant to the conversion ot these notes shall be upon and subject to the same terms and
conditions applicable to equity securites sold in the qualified financing, The Company reviewed these
notes for bencficial conversion features and determined the notes did not require discount for
beneticial conversion feawres at the issuance dates.

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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SAFE Agreements
21920200 Lisiances

In 2019 1o 2020, the Company issued simple agreements for future equity (SAFE agreements) in
exchange for cash investments for total amount of $85,000 (the “Purchase Amount™). The terms
provide for automatic conversion of the SAFE agreements’ purchase amounts into the Company’s
preferred stock if and upon an equity financing event, which is senerally defined as a transaction or
series of ransactions involving the issuance of the Company’s preferred stock at a fixed pre-money
valuation. The number of shares of preterred stock the SAFH agreements converrinto is the Purchase
Amount divided by the conversion rate determined either (a) valuaton cap price {as defined in the
agreement as a share price determined by a 510,000,000 post-money valuation on the Company’s fully
diluted capitalization); or (b} a 20% discount (15% on one SAFE agreement) 1o the share pricing in
the trigrering round, whichever results in a greater number of shares ol preferred stock.

In the case of a liquidity cvent {as defined in the SAFE agreement) betore the wermination of the
SAVFE, the investor has the np[irm to either a) receive a cash pavment equal to the Purchase Amount
or b] the amounrt payable on the number of common stock shares equal ro the Purchase Amount
divided by the houidit price {as defined in the agreement as a share price determined by a 510,000,000
post-maoney valuation on the Company’s tully dilated capitalizaton).

The SAFE agreements provide holders with various additonal protecuons, including preferences over
stockholdersin a dissolution event for pavment of the Purchase Amount and and-dilution protections.

In 2021, some of the SAFE holders agreed 1o conversion but was not vet formalized and therefore
remained as ourstanding liability as of December 31, 2022 and 2021,

2027 [rssanices

In 2021, the Company issued SAFL agreements in exchange for cash investments for wtal amount of
$3,000,000 (the “Purchase Amount”™). The terms provide for automatic conversion of the SAFL
agreements’ purchase amounts nto the Compamy’s common stock or preterred stock (CCapiral
Stock™) if and upon an equity financing cvent, which is generally defined as a transaction or series of
rransacrions involving the issuance of the Company’s Capiral Stock ar a fixed pre-money valuarion.
The number of shares of Capital Stock the SAFE agreements convert into s the Purchase Amaount
divided by the conversion rate determined cither (a) valuation cap price {as defined in the agreement
as 4 share price determined by a $20,000,000 for 32,000,000 of the SAFE agreements and $30,000,0001
for 31,000,000 of the SAFL agreements valuaton on the Company’s fully diluted capitalizadon); or
(hj a 20% discount to the share pricing in the triggering round, whichever results in a greater number
of shares of Capiral Stock.

In the case of a liquidity evenr {as defined in the SAFE agreement) before the terminarion of the
SATH, the investor has the opdon to either a) receive a cash pavment equal to the Purchase Amount
or b) the amount payable on the number of common stock shares equal to the Purchase Amount
divided by rhe liquidity price (as defined in the agreement as a share price determined by a $20,000,000)
for 52,000,000 of the SALL agreements and 530,000,000 for S1LODO0O00 of the SAPL agrecments
valuation on the Company™s tully diluted capitalization).
See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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The SAFE agreements provide holders with various additional protections, including preferences over
stockholders in 2 dissolution event tor payment of the Purchase Amount and and-diluton protections.
As discussed in Notwe 6, the Regulanon Crowdtunding conducred in December 2021 [!'il-_‘;}_\i_']'t_‘d the
conversion of these SAFT agreements issued in 2021 totaling $3,000,000 to 8,728,221 shares of Class
B common stock at conversion prices ot SOL3T-R0040 per share.

On May 21, 2022 the Company and the holder of the $3,000,000 SAFE agreement agreed to amend
the terms of the SAFESs to reflect the original intent of the parties. The detininon of Fquity Financing
was redefined as: “Equity Financing” means a bona fide transaction or series of tansactions with the
prmc ipal purpose of raising capiral, pursuant to which the Company issues and sells in the agprepare

IL.N 3,000,000 worth of Capiral Stock at a fixed pre-money valuation. For purposes of this
d:;linidc_m, “bona fide transaction” includes capital raised in any Regulaton CF crowdfunding
campaign beginning on or after December 29, 2021, but does nor include any such crowdtunding
campaign occurring before such date.

The Regulanon Crowdtunding conducted in December 2021 does not meer the revised definmition of

Fquity Financing resulting to a reversal of the issuance of 8,728,221 shares of Class B Common Stock
in 2022
in 2022

2122 Lersencer

In 2022, the Company issued SAFE agreements in exchange for cash investments for tomal amount of
$340,000 (the “Purchase Amount™). The terms provide for automatic conversion of the SAFE
agreements’ purchase amounts i the Company’s common swock or preferred stock (FCapital
Stock™) it and upon an equity financing event, which is generally defined as a transaction or series of
transactions involving the issuance of the Company’s Capital Stock at a fixed pre-money valuation,
The number of shares of Capiral Stock the SAFE agreements convert into 1s the Purchase Amount
divided by the conversion rate determined by either {a) valuadon cap prlf_r_ {as defined in the agreement
45 4 share price determined by a 835 0010 000 valuation on the C ru'ﬂplm s tully diluted capitalization);
or (b a 80% discount to the share pricing in the riggering round, whichever results in a greater
number of sharcs of Capital Stock.

In the case of a liquidity event {as defined in the SAVE agreement) before the termination of the
SAFE, the investor has the option 1o either a) receive a cash pavment equal to the Purchase Amount
or b) the amount pavable on the number of common stock shares equal to the Purchase Amount
divided by the liquidity price (as defined in the apreement as a share price determined by a $35,000,000
valuation on the Company’s tully diluted capitalization).

NOTE 6: STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT

The Company authorized 36,441,510 shares of preferred stock at SUOO000T par value and 132,000,000
shares of common stock at S0.000001 par value. The Company designated its preferred stock as
0,552,714 shares of Series Seed-1 preferred stock, 2,011,016 shares of Series Seed-2 preferred stock,

2018,566 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock, 2,309,579 shares of Series Seed-4 preferred stock,

2 Ly
14,742 shares of Series Seed-3 preterred stock, and 4539507 shares of Seres Sced-6 preferred
stock uhe Series Seed- 1 preferred stock, Series Seed-2 preferred stock, Series Seed-3 preferred stock,
See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance is provided regarding 2022,
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Series Seed-4 preferred stock, Series Seed-5 preferred stock and Series Seed-6 preferred stock,
collectively, are referred to as the “Series Seed preferred stock™) and 16,574,586 shares of Series A
preferred stock. The Company designated 1ts common stock as 67,000,000 shares of Class A common
stock and 65,000,000 shares of Class B common stock,

The original issuance price for each class of preferred stock is as Tollows:
®  Series Seed-1 preterred stock: $0.3325
e Series Seed-2 preferred stock: $0.20
o Series Seed- 3 preferred stock: 300175
Series Sced-4 preferred stock: 0015
e  Scries Sced-5 preferred stocks 5000615
e Series Seed-0 preferred stock: 30,05

e Series A preferred stock: S0.0905

All preferred stockholders have various other rights and preferences over common stockholders,
including voting rights on an as-converted basis, and other protective provisions. The preferred
stockholders have certain dividend preferences over common stockholders ata per share rate of 6%
per annum, and then
ratable disrribution of any addinonal dividends on an as-converted basis with common stock, The

of cach series of preferred stock’s original issuance price (as defined above)

preferred stock is subject to an optonal conversion rght, where preferred stock is convertible into
tully paid and non-assessable shares ot Class B common stock ar a 101 rare, with cerrain dilurnion
protections, All shares of preferred stock are subject to auromatc conversion into Class B common
stock upon the carlier of an initial public offering with at least $30,000,000 gross proceeds or by vote
or written consent of the requisite holders.

Preferred stockholders have liquidation preferences of (i) with respect to the Scries Sced preferred
stock, the product of 1.5 and applicable dilution protected original issue price per share (as defined
above) and [if) with respect to the Seres A preferred stock, the applicable original issuc price (as
detined above), plus declared bur unpaid dividends on such share. As of December 31, 2023 and
2021, the total hquidanon preference was 36,502,608 and 56,301,182, respecuvelv.  All remaining
asscts of the Company after satisfaction of the preferred stock liquidation preferences are distributed
to common stockholders, but preterred stockholders are ennitled to instead recerve proceeds on an as-
converted basis should such proceeds be greater than the hiquidanon preference.

Class A common stock have vonng rights of 11 votes per share and Class I3 common stock have
votng rights of 1 vote per share, Preferred stock is entided to vote with holders of Class B common
stock on an as-converted basis, The Class A common stock is subject 1o an optional conversion,
where Class A common stock 1s converuble inro fully paid and no-assessable shares of Class B
comimaon stock at a 1:1 rate.

Preferred Stock

In 2020, the Company 1ssued 1,215,466 shares of Series A preferred stock in conversion of notes
payable with principal amount of S110.000 at a conversion price of $0.0905,

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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In 2022, the Company and the noteholders agreed to the conversion of the remaininge 5131900 and
pan) _ 14

related interest earned up o December 31, 2008 amounting to §12,823 to the following Company

srocks:

Amount Sharcs Conversion
converted issued Price
Series Seed-1 preterred stock 5 114,659 34 427 5 11,3325
Series Seed-2 preferred srock 0837 34,185 L2000
Series Seed-6 2082 41 530 (LS
Series A preferred stock LI 110,497 0,055
Class B commaon stock 705 35527 200
5 144723

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 6,552,714 and 6,207 787 shares of Series Seed-1 preterred stock
were issued and ousstanding, 2,611,616 and 2,557 431 shares of Series Seed-2 preferred stock were
issued and outstanding, 2,018,506 and 2,018,566 shares of Series Seed-3 preferred stock were issued
and ourstanding, 2309579 and 2,300,579 shares of Series Seed-4 preferred srock were issued and
outstanding, 1T,814.742 and LR14,742 shares of Series Seed- 5 preferred stock were issued and
outstanding, 4,559.507 and 4,517,668 shares of Series Seed-0 preferred stock were issued and
outstanding, and 9862971 and 9,752,474 shares of Sertes A preferred stock were issued and
outstanding, all respectively.

Common Stock

Rea CEROTT

In 2020, the Company conducted an oftering of its Class B common stock under Regulation
Crowdfunding (Reg C17) through Startlingine Secure, LLC ar 80017 per share. Uor the vear ended
December 31, 2021, the Company issued 575,306 shares of Class B common stock for total gross
proceeds of S97 802 Toral r}ff‘eriﬂg cost incarred relared ro this :JFE'f'fing were 354,042 for the
vear ended December 31, 2021, Included in the 2021 offering cost was 521,013 of non-cash
issuance of 127,135 shares of Class B common stock to StartEngine Secure, LU as commission on
the Reg CF campaign. During 2021, §49,078 of rhe invested funds from 2020 thar were held in
cscrow as of December 31, 2020 were received.

R{;:: P R0

In 2021, the Company conducted another offering of its Class B common stock under Regulation
Crowdtunding (Reg CIF) through Starthingine Secure, LLC ar 30074 per share. For the vear ended
December 31, 2021, the Company issued 195,920 shares of Class B common stock for total gross
proceeds of $123183, Total offering cost incurred relared ro this offering was $11L087 for the
vear ended December 31, 2021, Included in the 2021 offenng cost was 32,464 of non-cash
issuance of 3,919 shares of Class B common stock to StartFngine Secure, L1 as commission on the

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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Reg CF campaign, As of December 31, 2021, 5114560 of the invested funds is held under escrow
and 1s recognized as escrow receivable in the balance sheer. These funds were received in 2022,

For the vear ended December 31, 2022, the Company issued 984 539 shares of Class B common
stock for roral gross proceeds of 56982120 Toral oftenng cosrs incurred related to the same
offering amounted 1o 583,917 for the vear ended December 31, 20220 Included in the 2022
offering cost was 316,088 of non-cash issuance of 23,845 shares of Class B common stock to
Start Engine Secure, LLC as commission on the Reg CF campaign. As of December 31, 2022,
44,697 of the invested funds is held under escrow and is recognized as escrow receivable in the
halance sheer.

This Reg CE offering triggered the conversion of the SAFE liability totaling $3,000,000 o
8,728,221 shares of Class B common stock ar conversion prices of §0.31-80.46 per share in 2021,

The total gross proceeds of the Reg CF offering did not meet the amended definition of Equity
Financing (as discussed in Notwe 5) and reversed the issuance ol 8,728 221shares of Class B
Common Stock in 2022,

OVéler Lesuanies

In 2020, the Company issued 1,025,292 shares of Class ¥ commaon stock ar 0017 per share tor
total proceeds of $174,300, Alsoin 2020, the Company issued 103,69% shares of Class B common
stock in conversion of interest payable amounting to $20,784 at a conversion price of S0.2004, as
discussed in Note 5.

In 2022, the Company issued 34,686 shares of Class B common stock as repavment for accrued
interest relared 10 nores ]‘ru_\-'ﬂh]ﬁ' amounting o £21,282 {or conversion prices of $0.200and $0.74

per share].

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 5,853,781 and 85,853,781 shares of Class A common stock were
issucd and outstanding, and 9,573,797 and 17 238,948 shares of Class B common stock were issued
and outstanding, all respecuvely.

a4

ock Options

The Company has adopted the 2013 Stock Plan {the "Plan™), which ;‘H':‘n'[:_{cq tor the grant of shares
of srock aprions (o employees and non-employee direcrors, The Company has reserved 151010 Y43
shares of Class B common stock for issuance under the Plan, The opdons generally have a term of
ten vears and vestung generally occurs immediately, As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, 1421 693
and 1,476,840 shares of Class B common stock were available for grant, respectively.

A summary of options activitics for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance s provided regarding 2022,
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December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Weighted Average Weighted Average
Options Exercise Price Oprions Exercise Price
l]tlial;'ﬂ'l[“nll_.; -l'lL'_L{iI'I."'I.f'I}_'I ol yEAr 13,520 4000 5 IR 12,153,165 5 1.4
- F 4 . - amg M= o~ -
Crranred PR 5 W17 1,338,235 5 017
Ferferred -:'.31_",.:}( LE - L7 =
Otstanding - end of vear 13,576,547 5 .05 1352140 S R
Frercisable at end of vear 13,4599 464 5 .05 13,371,400 8 R
E—— —
Inrrinsic value of opdons outstanding
at year-crid 5 1,093 3% 8
A e
Weghred average duration [years) to
cxpiration of ourstanding oprions al
vear end .83 751
Welshred averape duration {years) o
capiration of cxercisabic options a
year-cod T.82 7.0

The Company measures employvee stock-based awards at grant-date fair value and recognizes
emplovee compensanon expense on a straight-line basis over the vesing period of the award.
Determining the appropriate fair value of stock-based awards requires the input of subjective
assumptions, including the fair value of the Company’s commaon stock, and for stock optons, the
expected life of the opuon, and expecred stock price volatility, The Company used the Black-Scholes
option pricing model to value its stock option awards. The assumptions used in calculating the fair
value of stock-based awards represent management’s best esamates and involve inherent uncertaintics
and the application of management’s judgment. As a resulr, if factors change and management uses
different assumptions, stock-based compensation expense could be materially different for future
awards.

The expected life of stock options was estimated using the “simplified method,” which is the midpoint
berween the vestng start dare and rthe end of the contractual term, as the Company has limired
histoncal information to develop reasonable expectations about future exercise patterns and
cmplovment duration for its stock optons grants. The simplified method is based on the average of
the vesting ranches and the conrctual life of each grant. For stock price volaality, the Company
uses comparable public companies as a basis for its expected volatlity to caleulate the fair value of
options grants. The nsk-free interest rare is based on US. Treasury notes with a term approximaring,
the expected life of the opton. The estimation of the number of stock awards that will ultimarely vest
requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from the Company’s
current esimates, such amounts are rc‘cngni‘»‘.e:] as an ;Ldiuﬁrsm:m' in the ptfriud in which estimates are
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revised, [n accordance with ASC 7185, as a private company, the Company has elected to use a 0%
forfeiture rate in c.‘n]cu]nﬁng its stock compensation expense.

The stock option issuances were valued using the using the following inputs for the vears ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021
Risk Froe Interest Rate 13701 40t (.36%a-0,7 W
Frpeeted Dividend Yiekd L (L0
Liaxpeoted Volaolio G900 R
Prpected Lite (vears) 560 56
Fatr Value per Stock Option SiL62 SO LD

The total grant date fair value of options issued during the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021
was $37.351 and $129,621, respectvely. The Company calculated ies esnmare of the value of the
stock-based compensaton pranted for the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 under FASB
ASC 718, and recorded compensation costs related to the stock option grants of $31,942 and
$116,767, respectivelv. As of December 31, 2022] there was §14,579 of unrecognized stock-based
compensation, which will be recognized over a weighted average period of 18 months.

Warrants
f.r.'.‘f.r aReer

In 2020, the Company issued warrants to one ot its lenders. The warrant expires afrer a 10-yvear rerm
in 2030, The warrants provide the lender with the right to purchase up to 130,000 shares of Class 13
common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The warrants were valued under the Black-
scholes model ar 53,450, which was recorded as a discount on the loan and amorozed over s term.

The Black-Scholes fair value was determined using the following inputs:

Risk Pree Inreresr Rare .67
Expected Dividend Yield L, 000
Fxpected Volaulio R
Lxpected Lite (vears) 5

aar Walue per Stock (]}'\15(1:1 SO023

In 2022, the Company issucd warrants to one of its lenders. The warrant expives atter a 10-year term
in 2030, The warrants provide the lender with the right to purchase up to 2,000 shares of Class 13
common stock at an exercise price of $0.01 per share. The warrants were valued under the Black-
Scholes model and had a tvial fair value and accordingly, were nor recognized in the financial
statements,

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
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isdobaiielivgg

Ourstanding warrants for the purchase of Class B common stock as of December 31, 2022 and 2021
were 5,597 350 and 55395350, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, no warrants have
been converted into the Company’s stock. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the weighted average
exercise price of the oustanding warrants was 50,19 and 50,19 per share, with a weighred average
duration to expiration of 3.9 and 4.9 vears, and inwinsic value of $264571 and 5264231, all
respectively.

NOTE 7: RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Company has notes receivable from its CHO amounting to 560,513 and $37,469 as of December

31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, as discussed in Note 4.

The Company has notes pavable to s CEO and his family amounting to $66,737 as of both December
31,2022 and 2021, as discussed in Note 5.

For the vear ended December 31, 2021, the Company recognized $15,486 in revenue from the sale of
solar technology to s stockholder,

The Company paid $2,367 of consultng feoes to one of its tounders for the vear ended December 31,
2021.

NOTE 8: COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

General

The Company may be subject to pending legal proceedings and regulatory actions in the ordinar
course of business. The results of such proceedings cannat be prr=<|irrc-.d with certamnty, bur the
Company docs not antcipate that the final outcome, it any, arising out of any such matter will have a
material adverse etfect on its business, tinancial condition or results of operanons.

SANE and Convertible Note Conversions

As discussed in Note 5, the holders of SAFE agreements with outstanding amount of $58,000 agreed to
the conversion of the ourstanding liability to Company’s stock bur was not vet tormalized through the
issuance of these financial statements,

Opoons

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company made informal commitments to two employvees to
1ssue stock opnons in lieu of compensaton totaling 660,500 and 549,500, respectvely. Optons issued
related to this compensation were issued in 2023, as discussed in Note 11,

See Independent Auditor’s Reporr regarding 2021,
N assurance is provided regarding 2022,
27



YOUSOLAR, INC.

Notes to the Financial Statements
As of December 31, 2022 (unaudited) and 2021 (audited) and for the years then ended

NOTE 9: LEASE COMMITMENT

In Ocrober 2020, the Company entered into a lease agreement tor otfice space, storage for solar
applications, and assembly of components into electrical cabinets, which commenced on January 1,
2021 and for a period of three years ending December 31, 2023, The agreement called for a secunry
deposit of $4,776 and one month advance rental. The monthly rental fee is 32,250 for the first year,
with subsequent annual rent increases of 3% over the next two years.

In June 2021, the term of the lease agreement was extended for eight months, from January 1, 2024
ro August 31, 2024, Effecove Julv 19, 2021, the lease premises was adjusted to include an addidonal
1,250 square feer, with addinonal base rent for the expanded premises of $1,022 in Julv 2021, §2 438
in August 1, 2021 1o July 31, 2022, S2511 in August 1, 2022 o July 31, 2023, 52,5806 in the next tive
months, and $2,460 on the last eight months of the lease rerm.

The following is a schedule of operating lease liability as of December 31, 2022

2023 4 59,163
2024 § 159,680
Total undiscounted cash flows TH.E45
Unamorrized interest 3 (2,317
Present value of operating lease liability % 76,520
Orperaring lease liability, current 3 57,138
Operating lease liability, non-current $ 19,388
Present value of operating lease liabiliry $ 76,526

Supplemental cash flow informauon relawed w leases tor the vear ended December 31, 2022 are as
follows:

Cash paid for amounts included 1n the measurement of lease libility:

Operating cash flows for operating leases 5 52,749
|ease lability arising from obtaining right-of use asset:

Operating lease b 125,304

For the vears ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the rent expense related to this lease amounted 1o
$56,125 and $43.801, respectively.

NOTE 10: RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In February 2010, the Financial Accounnng Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounnng Stndards
Update (“ASU) 2006-02, |eases (Topee §42). This ASU requires a lessee to recognize a righr-of-use
asset and a lease lability under most operating leases in its balanee sheet. The ASL s effective tor
annual and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2021, Early adoptdon is permitted. The
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Company adopted this ASU on January 1, 2022 and its impact was discussed in Note 2 to the financial
statements,

In August 2020, FASB issued ASU 2020-06, Acosnting for Convertible Lustraments and Contracts i an
Fontityy O Bagueiry (TASU 2020-06"7), as part of irs overall simplificaton ininarve to reduce costs
and complexity of applving accounting standards while maintaining or improving the usefulness
of the information provided to users of financial statements, Among other changes, the new
cuidance removes {from GAAP separaton models for convertble debt that require the
convertible debt to be separated into a debt and equity component, unless the conversion feature
is required 1o be bifurcated and accounted for as a derivardve or the debtis issued ar a subsrandal
premium. As a result, afrer adopung the guidance, entities will no longer separately present such
embedded conversion features in equiry, and will insread account for the convernble debr wholly
as debr. The new guidance also requires use of the “it-converted”™ method when caleulating the
dilutive impact of convertible debt on earnings per share, which is consistent with the Companmy’s
current accounting treatment under the current guidance, The guidance is effective for financial
statements 1ssued for Oscal vears beginning after December 15, 2021, and inwrim perods within
those fiscal vears, with early adoption permitted, but only at the beginning of the fiscal year., The
Company is eurrently evaluating the impacr the adopaon of ASU 2020-06 will have on the
Company’s financial starements,.

Management does nor believe thar any other recently issued, bur nor ver effective, accounting
standards could have a material effect on the accompanving financial statements, As new accounting
pronouncements are issued, the Company will adopt those that are applicable under the
CITCLUTISEATNCE S,

NOTE 11: SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Regulavon Crowdiunding Reg CI7) 50,74

Subsequent to December 31, 2022, the Company issued 815,495 shares of Class B common stock at
$0.74 per share under the Reg CF offering for gross proceeds of $538,086 and incurred a total offering
cost of 853809, The Reg CF was concluded on March 15, 2023, In addivon, 16,310 shares of Class
B common stock is expected to be issued to StartHngine Secure, 1.1.C as commission for the Reg CF
campaign.

Stock Options

On March 29, 2023, the Company 1ssucd options for the issuance of 1,270,000 shares of Class B
comman stock with exercise prices of 80,05 per share.

Loan Conversion to SAFL Agreement

On March 10, 2023, the Company agreed with the holder of the converuble notes to cancel the
$300,000 principal amount and any acerued interest under the loan in exchange for the issuance of
SAFH, FBstimated interest as of the date of the agreement amounted to $63,247 bringing the towl
amount to 3563,247,
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Additional SAFT [ssuances

In 2023, the Compam 1ssued various SAFE apTeEmEnts for a toml amount of 75,000 with the same
termis and conditions as the 2022 SAVE Issuances as discussed 1n Note 3.

Additional Compensation to a Key Officer

In January 2023, The Company agreed o provide one of its key officers 1,050,000 shares of phantom
stock that will
ro have started on November 1, 2022 and a requirement to complete the liquidity evenr requirement

e given over a series of 14 successive monthly installments which will be considered

as defined in the offer leter, Purther, the key officer will be issued 1,500,000 commeon stock opuons

with a d-vear vesting period starting on November 1, 20220 This is subject 1o board approval as of
L\ I 3—\ 1
April 26, 2023,

Manacement’s Fvaluanon

Management has evaluated subsequent events through April 26, 2023, the date the finanaal statements
were aviilable to be ssued, Based on this evaluanon, no addimonal marerial evenrs were idennfied

which require adjustment or disclosure in these financial statements.
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CERTIFICATION
I, Arnold Leitner, Principal Executive Officer of YouSolar, Inc., hereby certify that the

financial statements of YouSolar, Inc. included in this Report are true and complete in all
material respects.
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